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Fellow Stockholder

For the past couple years, operating
and financing in the long-term care
industry has been like playing a golf
course full of challenging hazards.
Changing reimbursement systems put
the industry into chaos and ultimately
resulted in a number of both large and
small operators seeking bankruptcy
protection. Crowds of lawyers
commuted from one courtroom
performance to another, reducing the
dollars available for patient care and
debt service with each show.

In long-term care financing as in
golf, there are lush fairways between
the hazards. In our industry these
fairways represent a number of
positive trends. The construction of
new facilities or expansion is virtually
non-existent. The aging of our
population continues with the
expectation that in the year 2020
approximately 20% of our nation’s
population will be over the age of 65.
Limited construction will allow
demand to catch up with supply.
NHTI’s focus is to be in position to
benefit from these trends.

Balance Sheet

At December 31, 2001, our debt to
capitalization ratio was 36.3% vs.
46.2% in the prior year. More
importantly, our liquidity improved to
the point where our next debt balloon
payment of $56,286,000 is not due
until February 1, 2004. Finally, during
2001 we were successful in removing
the cross default provisions on certain
debt that we previously guaranteed.
With leverage down, liquidity
improved, and cross defaults
eliminated, our balance sheet is in the
center of the fairway.

Financial Results

This past year has been one of
extracting certain of our investments
from the hazards of operating in the
long-term health care industry.
Although a number of our investments
have exited the hazard and are now
cash flowing, other investments
continue to struggle with their
operations. We will continue our
efforts during 2002, and as a result,
expect to see additional investments
return to a current pay status.

For the year ended December 31,
2001, funds from operations per
common share were 52 cents
compared to $1.89 for the same period
last year. Net loss applicable to
common stock for the year ended
December 31, 2001, was $1,944,000
or eight cents per share compared to
net income of $31,910,000, or $1.31
per share in 2000. The decline in
income and FFO is the result of 2001
investment losses related to loans,
realty impairments, and securities of
$35,559,000 or $1.45 per share vs.
$14,707,000 or $.60 per share in 2000.

For the quarter ended December 31,
2001, FFO per common share was 36
cents compared to 16 cents last year.
Net income applicable to common
stock was $4,871,000 compared to
$20,000 in 2000. For the quarter ended
December 31, 2001, FFO and net
income included investment losses
related to loans and securities of
$2,571,000 or 10 cents per share,
compared to $10,448,000 or 43 cents
per share in 2000.

The fourth quarter net write-down
of $2,571,000 was primarily
attributable to our investment in an
assisted living facility in Charlotte,
North Carolina operated by
Manorhouse Retirement Centers, Inc.
In addition to the write-down, NHI
ceased recognizing income on this loan
beginning November 2001.

W. Andrew Adams, Chairman

Dividends

The last two years have been
difficult for common shareholders of
NHI. As shareholders, your
management team experienced the
feeling of being in the hazard when
NHI dividends were suspended. We
were pleased, however to pay a
dividend of 45 cents for 2001 and
beginning with the first quarter of
2002, resume paying quarterly
dividends. By the time you receive
this letter, you will know the amount of
the first quarter dividend. We expect
to maintain a more conservative
dividend payout ratio than previous
years, as a result of more of our assets
being owned rather than mortgaged.

Thank you for your continued
support, and it is our goal to put all
chip shots on the green during 2002.

Sincerely,

W. Andrew Adams,
President and Stockholder




| Financial Highlights

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Net revenues $ 139,171 $§ 147,514 131,158 106,552 111,410
§ Net income (loss) 63) 33,724 53,618 69,645 75,388
Net income (loss) per share
Basic $ 08 § 1.31 2.13 2.72 3.01
Diluted (.08) 1.31 2.13 2.69 2.92
Mortgages and other investments, net  $ 324,230 $ 429,963 441,906 495,964 479,154
Real estate properties, net 323,266 278,004 316,021 245,538 200,069
Total assets 672,630 766,977 788,545 769,198 753,033
Long-term debt 164,464 143,660 172,870 151,559 155,659
Credit facilities — 83,000 88,000 58,500 —
Convertible subordinated debentures 62,643 114,281 95,741 160,096 119,038
Total stockholders' equity 397,793 397,409 392,640 424,660 444 080
Common shares outstanding 26,004,318 24,392,157 24,382,987 24,364,391 24,753,570
Weighted average common shares
‘ Basic 24,466,850 24,383,932 24,365,027 24,964,047 24,394,044
Diluted 24,466,850 24,564,873 24,367,529 28,689,192 28,887,987
Common dividends declared
B DPer share $ A5 § 1.28 2.96 2.96 2.96
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

(Mark One)
[X] ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934 For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001
OR
[ 1] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TC SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934 For the transition period from to
Commission file number 33-41863
NATIONAL HEALTH INVESTORS, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)
Maryland 62-1470956
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or (I.R.S. Employer Identification Number)
organization)
100 Vine Street, Suite 1202, Murfreesboro, Tennessee 37130
(Address of principal executive offices)
(Zip Code)
(615) 890-9100
(Company’s telephone number including area code)
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:
p
Title of each Class Name of each exchange
on which registered
o Shares of Common Stock New York Stock Exchange
B Shares of Preferred Cumulative Convertible Stock New York Stock Exchange
Senior Subordinated Convertible Debentures Due 2006 (10%) New York Stock Exchange
Senior Subordinated Convertible Debentures Due 2004 (7%) New York Stock Exchange

Convertible Subordinated Debentures Due 2006 (Greater of Prime + 1% or 9%) New York Stock Exchange
$100,000,000 of 7.30% Notes Due 2007 —_—

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act
Same

& Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports),

and (2} has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days  Yes _X No_

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not
be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part Il

of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. [X]

The aggregate market value of voting stock held by nonaffiliates of the registrant was $282,202,435 as of February 27, 2002. The num-

ber of shares of Common Stock outstanding as of February 28, 2002 was 26,033,745.
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Item 1. Business
General

We are a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) which invests in income producing health care properties primarily in the long-term
care industry. As of December 31, 2001, we had ownership interests in real estate, mortgage investments and REMIC investments total-
ing approximately $582 million, and other investments in preferred stock and marketable securities of $65 million, resulting in total
invested assets of $647 million. Gur mission is to provide current income for distribution to stockholders through investments in health
care related businesses and facilities, including long-term care facilities, acute care hospitals, medical office buildings, retirement cen-
ters and assisted living facilities, all of which are collectively referred to herein as “Health Care Facilities”. We have funded these
investments through three sources of capital: current cash flow, including principal prepayments from our borrowers, the sale of equi-
ty in the form of common and preferred stock and debt offerings, including bank lines of credit, the issuance of convertible debt instru-
ments, and the issuance of straight debt. We currently have no outstanding bank lines of credit.

Although we intend to augment our mission by acquiring additional properties and making additional mortgage loans nationwide,
predominately in the long-term care industry, market conditions make it unlikely that any material new investments in Health Care
Facilities will occur during 2002. Instead we are actively engaged in monitoring and improving our existing portfolio.

As a result of recent conditions in the long-term care industry, we currently operate (thru a third party manager) 21 long-term health
care facilities acquired through foreclosure or in lieu of foreclosure. We are treating these properties as foreclosure properties for fed-
eral income tax purposes. With this election, unqualified income generated by the properties is expected to be treated as qualified
income for up to six years from the purchase date for purposes of the income-source tests that must be satisfied by REITs to maintain
their tax status.

As of December 31, 2001, we had approximately $546 million in real estate and mortgage investments in 193 health care facilities
located in 24 states consisting of 142 long-term care facilities, one acute care hospital, eight medical office buildings, 18 assisted liv-
ing facilities, seven retirement centers and 17 residential projects for the developmentally disabled. These investments consist of
approximately $223 million aggregate principal amount of loans to 19 borrowers and $323 million of purchase leaseback agreements
with ten lessees and $36 million invested in REMIC pass through certificates. Cf these 193 facilities, 60 are leased to or operated by
National HealthCare Corporation (“NHC”).

At December 31, 2001, we were committed, subject to due diligence and financial performance goals, to fund approximately $1.5
million in health care real estate projects of which $1.3 million is expected to be funded within the next 12 months. The commitments
include investments for one long-term health care center, and one hospital all at rates ranging from 10.0% to 11.5%.

We commenced operations on October 17, 1991 with approximately $121.8 million in net assets obtained when we acquired 40
skilled long-term care facilities, three retirement centers, and four third party first mortgage notes from NHC, successor by merger to
National HealthCare L.P. in exchange for 7,306,570 shares of our Common Stock. Concurrently, we assumed mortgage indebtedness
and certain other obligations of NHC related to the acquired properties. The 43 properties were then leased to NHC. NHC is a publicly
traded corporation which at December 31, 2001 operated or managed 83 long-term care facilities with a total of 10,808 licensed beds.
NHC additionally operated 1,056 assisted care units and 487 independent living apartments. Within its centers are located 281
Alzheimer’s beds and 214 sub-acute beds. NHC also operates seven retirement centers with a total of 487 units, 13 freestanding assist-
ed living facilities with a total of 843 units and 33 home health care programs.

NHC has provided advisory services to us since our inception pursuant to an Advisory, Administrative Services and Facilities
Agreement (the “Advisory Agreement”). In addition, NHI and NHC have certain other relationships. See “Certain Relationships and
Related Transactions.”

{EIT

Unless the context indicates otherwise, references herein to “the Company”, “we” and “our” include all of our subsidiaries.

Types of Health Care Facilities

Long-term care facilities. As of December 31, 2001, we owned and leased 48 licensed long-term care facilities, 35 of which were
operated by NHC. The remaining 13 licensed long-term care facilities are leased to other long-term care companies. As of December
31, 2001, we owned and operated 20 long-term care facilities and one retirement center that we have acquired through foreclosure or
by accepting a deed in lien of foreclosure. We also had outstanding first mortgage loans and REMIC investments on 73 additional
licensed long-term care facilities. All of these facilities provide some combination of skilled and intermediate nursing and rehabilita-
tive care, including speech, physical and occupational therapy. The operators of the long-term care facilities receive payment from a
combination of private pay sources and government programs such as Medicaid and Medicare. Long-term care facilities are required
to obtain state licenses and are highly regulated at the federal, state and local level. Most long-term care facilities must obtain certifi-
cates of need from the state before opening or expanding such facilities.

Acute and long term care hospitals. As of December 31, 2001, we owned and leased one acute care hospital. Acute care hospitals
provide a wide range of inpatient and outpatient services and are subject to extensive federal, state and local legislation and regulation.
Acute and long term care hospitals undergo periodic inspections regarding standards of medical care, equipment and hygiene as a con-
dition of licensure. Services provided by acute and long term care hospitals are generally paid for by a combination of private pay
sources and governmental programs.
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Medical office buildings. As of December 31, 2001, we owned and leased seven medical office buildings. In addition, we had a first
mortgage loan on one medical office building. Medical office buildings are specifically configured office buildings whose tenants are
primarily physicians and other medical practitioners. Medical office buildings differ from conventional office buildings due to the spe-
cial requirements of the tenants and their patients. Each of our owned medical office buildings is leased to one lessee, and is either phys-
ically attached to or located on an acute care hospital campus. The lessee then leases individual office space to the physicians or other
medical practitioners. The lessee is responsible to us for the lease obligations of the entire building, regardless of its ability to lease the
individual office space.

Assisted Living Facilities. We own 15 assisted living facilities, four of which are leased to a subsidiary of Marriott International and
eleven to state specific operators. We also have first mortgages on three additional assisted living projects. Assisted living unit facili-
ties are free standing facilities or facilities which are attached to long term care facilities or retirement facilities and provide basic room
and board functions for the elderly. Some assisted living projects include licensed long term care (nursing home) beds. On-site staff are
normally available to assist in minor medical needs on an as needed basis.

Retirement Centers. We own five retirement centers, four of which are leased to NHC and one to Sun Healthcare, and have first
mortgages on two others. Retirement centers offer specially designed residential units for the active and ambulatory elderly and pro-
vide various ancillary services for their residents including restaurants, activity rooms and social areas. Charges for services are paid
from private sources without assistance from government programs. Retirement centers may be licensed and regulated in some states,
but do not require the issuance of a certificate of need such as is normally required for long-term care facilities.

Residences for the developmentally disabled. As of December 31, 2001, we had outstanding first mortgage notes on 17 residences
for the developmentally disabled. Residences for the developmentally disabled are generally small home-like environments which
accommodate six to eight mentally and developmentally disabled persons. These persons obtain custodial care which includes food,
lodging, education and transportation services. These community based services are replacing the large state institutions which have
historically provided care to the developmentally disabled. Services to the developmentally disabled are primarily paid for by state
Medicaid programs.

Nature of Investments

QOur investments are typically structured as either purchase leaseback transactions or mortgage loans. We also provide construction
loans for facilities for which it has already committed to provide long-term financing or which agree to enter into a lease with us upon
completion of the construction. The capitalization rates of our leases and the interest rates on the mortgage loans and construction loans
have historically ranged between 9% and 12% per annum. We charge a commitment fee of 1% based on the purchase price of the prop-
erty of a purchase leaseback or the total principal loan amount of a mortgage loan. In instances where construction financing has also
been supplied, there is generally an additional 1% commitment fee for the construction financing. We believe our lease terms, mort-
gage loan and construction loan terms are competitive in the market place. Except for certain properties, as described under the head-
ing “Foreclosure Properties”, all of the operating Health Care Facilities are currently performing under their mortgage loans or leases.
Typical characteristics of these transactions are as follows:

Mortgage Loarns. In general, the term of our mortgage loans is 10 years with the principal amortized over 20 to 25 years and a bal-
loon payment due at the end of the 10 year term. Substantially all mortgage loans have an additional interest component which is based
on the escalation of gross revenues at the project level or fixed rate increases. These escalators are between 2.5% and 5% of the increase
in gross revenue over a base year for nursing homes (typically, the first year following the close of the financing) and are negotiated on
a project by project basis. Assisted living escalators are generally higher, (5 to 7%) while medical office buildings are lower (general-
ly 2% or so). In certain of our mortgage loans, we have received an equity participation which allows us to share in a portion of any
appreciation of the equity value of the underlying property. We do not expect the equity participations to constitute a significant or fre-
quent source of income. Most mortgage loans have prepayment penalties starting at 10% during the first year and decreasing by 1%
each year thereafter. In most cases, the owner of the property has committed to make minimum annual capital improvements for the
purpose of maintenance or upgrading the facility.

In most circumstances, we will require some additional form of security and/or collateral beyond that provided by the lien of the
mortgage. This additional security or collateral may consist of some or all of the following: (a) a guaranty by the borrowers’ parent, if
any, affiliates or individual principals; (b) an assignment of the leases and rents relating to the mortgaged property; (c) cross collater-
alization among loans; (d) security interest in other real property; (e) an assignment of personal property including accounts receivable;
() letters of credit or certificates of deposit, and (g) other intangibles.

Leases. Our leases generally have an initial leasehold term of 10 to 14 years with one or more five year renewal options. The leas-
es are “triple net leases” under which the tenant is responsible to pay all taxes, utilities, insurance premium costs, repairs and other
charges relating to the ownership and operation of the Health Care Facilities. The tenant is generally obligated at its expense to keep
all improvements and fixtures and other components of the Health Care Facilities covered by “all risk” insurance in an amount equal
to at least the full replacement costs thereof and to maintain specified minimal personal injury and property damage insurance, pro-
tecting us as well as the tenant at such Health Care Facility. The leases also require the tenant to indemnify and hold harmless NHI from
all claims resulting from the use and occupancy of each Health Care Facility by the tenant and related activities, as well as to indem-
nify NHI against all costs related to any release, discovery, clean-up and removal of hazardous substances or materials on, or other envi-
ronmental responsibility with respect to, each Health Care Facility.
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pitals are typically between 3% and 5% of the revenue increase per quarter or per annum. Rent escalators on certain medical office
buildings generally range from 2% to 4% of the prior year’s rent or in certain instances are based on increases in the Consumer Price
Index. All of the acute care and medical office building properties which we own and lease gives the lessee an option to purchase the
underlying property at the greater of i) our acquisition costs; ii) the then fair market value as established by independent appraisers or
iii) the sum of the land costs, construction costs and any additional capital improvements made to the property by us. None of our other
leases have options to purchase. In addition, the acute care and medical office building leases contain a right of first refusal for the les-
see if we receive an offer to buy the underlying leased property.

Most of the obligations under the leases are guaranteed by the parent corporation of the lessee, if any, or affiliates or individual prin-
cipals of the lessee. In some leases, the third party operator will also guarantee some portion of the lease obligations, usually for a fixed
period such as six months or one year. Some obligations are further backed by other collateral such as machinery, equipment, furnish-
ings and other personal property.

Construction loans. From time to time, we also provide construction loans that by their terms convert either into purchase leaseback
transactions or mortgage loans upon the completion of the construction of the facility. Generally, when provided, the interest rates on
the construction loans range from 9.0% to 11.5%. The term of such construction loans are for a period which commences upon the clos-
ing of such loan and terminates upon the earlier of (a) the completion of the construction of the applicable facility or (b) a specific date.
During the term of the construction loan, funds are usually advanced pursuant to draw requests made by the borrower in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the loan. In addition to the security of the lien against the property, we will generally require additional
security and collateral in the form of either payment and performance completion bonds or completion guarantees by the borrower’s
parent, affiliates of the borrower or one or more of the individuals who control the borrower.

Investment in REMIC Certificates

1993 Transactions

On November 9, 1993, we purchased $34.2 million principal amount of SC Commercial Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates, Series
1993-1 (the Certificates), which qualify as a real estate mortgage investment conduit (REMIC). The Certificates consist of nine class-
es issued in the aggregate principal amount of $172.9 million. The Certificates represent the entire beneficial ownership interest in a
trust fund consisting of a pool of forty-one mortgage loans generally secured by a first lien on a single property that provides long-term
care and/or assisted living care. All loans bear a fixed rate of interest, the weighted average of which is 9.308%. The Certificates were
purchased in a private placement offering and are not readily marketable or freely tradable.

Our investment in the Certificates includes Class D and Class E Certificates which bear interest and the Class I Certificates which
have no principal amount and are not entitled to distributions of principal, but are entitled to certain priority interest distributions. The
Class D and Class E Certificates were issued with original issue discount.

The Class D Certificates were rated “BB” by Standard & Poor’s Rating Group (S&P) and Fitch Investors Services (Fitch) and the
Class I Certificates were rated “AA” by Fitch. (As a policy S&P does not rate interest only certificates.) The Class E Certificates were
not rated. Fitch’s rating of the Class I Certificates does not address the possibility that Class I Certificate holders might suffer a lower
than anticipated yield or that if there is a rapid rate of principal payments (including both voluntary and involuntary prepayments),
investors in such Certificates could fail to recover their initial investments.

Distributions of interest and principal on the Class D and Class E Certificates are subordinated to distributions of interest and prin-
cipal with respect to the other classes of Certificates (which aggregate $137.9 million in principal amount). Distributions of interest on
the Class I certificates are senior to {or, with respect to certain classes of Certificates, pari passu to) distributions of principal and inter-
est of the other classes of Certificates.

1995 Transactions

On December 28, 1995, we purchased $7,305,000 face amount (purchase price was $6,158,000) of SC Commercial Mortgage Pass
Through Certificates, Series 1995-1 (the Certificates) which qualifies as a REMIC. The Certificates consist of ten classes issued in the
aggregate principal amount of $140,258,000. The Certificates represent the entire beneficial ownership interest in a trust fund consist-
ing of a pool of 36 first mortgage loans secured by a first lien on 38 properties that provide long term and/or assisted living care. All
loans bear a fixed rate of interest the weighted average of which is 10.47%. The Certificates were purchased in a private placement
offering and are not readily marketable or freely tradable.

Our investment is in Certificate Class F which are rated “B” by S & P and Fitch. Distributions of interest and principal on the Class
F certificates are subordinated to distributions of interest and principal with respect to other classes of the Certificates totaling
$132,953,000 in principal amount.

REMIC Certificate Valuations

During 2000, we were informed by the servicer of the 1993 REMIC that certain of the loans within the 1993 REMIC were not mak-
ing the required debt service payments. We wrote off $2,246,000 of the 1993 REMIC value that year due to these non-performing loans.
In April of 2001 the debtors recommended making their required payments and we anticipate their emergence from bankruptcy with
our collateral and current carrying amount unimpaired in 2002. We continually monitor the carrying values of the 1995 and 1993
REMIC investments based on actual cash payments received and revised cash flow projections that reflect updated assumptions about
collectibility, interest rates and prepayment rates. In the opinion of management, no other impairments of the carrying amounts have
occurred as of December 31, 2001.
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Operating Facilities

We own and operate 20 long-term health care facilities and one retirement center that we acquired through foreclosure or through
the acceptance of deeds in lieu of foreclosure. NHI has engaged subsidiaries of National HealthCare Corporation (“NHC”) to manage
these foreclosure properties. The operating revenues and expenses of these facilities are recorded in the consolidated statements of
income. With certain elections, unqualified income generated by these foreclosure properties is expected to be treated as qualified
income for up to six years from the purchase date for purpose of the income-source tests that must be satisfied by REITs to maintain
their tax status.

Competition and Market Conditions

‘We compete, primarily on the basis of price, available capital, knowledge of the industry, and flexibility of financing structure, with
real estate partnerships, other REITs and other investors (including, but not limited to, banks, insurance companies, and investment
bankers marketing securities in mortgage funds) in the acquisition, leasing and financing of health care related entities.

The operators of the Health Care Facilities compete on a local and regional basis with operators of facilities that provide compara-
ble services. Operators compete for patients and staff based on quality of care, reputation, physical appearance of facilities, services
offered, family preference, physicians, staff and price. They compete with independent operators as well as companies managing mul-
tiple facilities, some of which are substantially larger and have greater resources than the operators of the Health Care Facilities. Some
of these facilities are operated for profit while others are owned by governmental agencies or tax-exempt non-profit organizations.

In mid 1998, the long term care industry began experiencing Medicare revenue reductions brought about by the enactment of the
1997 Balanced Budget Act (“BBA 977). Additionally, the assisted living industry experienced slower fill-up rates on new projects and
more competition for their mature projects as overbuilding occurred in more and more markets. Stock prices for publicly traded com-
panies declined precipitously and companies announced greatly reduced earnings or even significant losses. By the end of 2000, five
of the ten largest public long term care companies were in bankruptcy, one of which emerged in 2001.

With the operators in such dire financial distress it is not surprising that the health care REIT industry - including your Company -
have seen such a reduction in market capitalization to the extent that using publicly sold equity to generate capital is not a realistic
option. Additionally, commercial borrowing sources are restricting if not altogether avoiding investments in health care REIT debt
issues. Accordingly, we are not currently competing with any healthcare REITs or commercial banks for placing new mortgage loans
or sale leasebacks. Instead, we are focusing on monitoring closely our existing investments, rather than making new ones.

Operators

The majority of the Health Care Facilities are operated by the owner or lessee. As a percent of total investments, 51.5% of the Health
Care Facilities are operated by publicly-owned companies, while 35.4% are operated by muliti state regional health care operators.
Generally, a third party operator of a facility is not liable to us under the mortgage orlease; however, we consider the operator to be an
important factor in determining the creditworthiness of the investment and we generally have the right to approve any changes in oper-
ators. On some investments, the third party operator of a facility guarantees at least a portion of the lease or mortgage. Operators who
collectively manage more than 3% of our total real estate assets are as follows: NHC, Lenox Healthcare, Allgood Healthcare Co.,
Highland Health Services, Inc., Integrated Health Services, Inc., Marriott Senior Living Services, and Southeast Health Services. Of
these operators, Lenox Healthcare emerged from bankruptcy in late December 2000 only to re-file in June 2001, while Integrated Health
Services is not expected to emerge from bankruptcy prior to the third quarter of 2602. For additional information about these and other
NHI operators, see “Foreclosure Properties™.

NHC Master Agreement to Lease

The Master Agreement to Lease (the “Master Agreement”) with NHC covers 40 nursing homes and three retirement centers and con-
tains terms and conditions applicable to all leases entered into by and between NHC and the Company (the “Leases”). The Leases were
for an initial term expiring on December 31, 2001 with two five year renewal options at the election of NHC which allow for the renew-
al of the leases on an omnibus basis only. During 2000, NHC exercised its option to extend the lease term for the first five-year renew-
al term under the same terms and conditions as the initial term. During 2000, four of the leases - all in Florida - were terminated and
NHI re-leased the properties to third parties. Although NHC’s rent obligations pursuant to the master lease are unchanged, NHC
receives a credit for rents paid to NHI by the new operators of the four Florida centers. The new operators of these centers are current
on their required payments as of December 31, 2001.

During the initial term and the first renewal term (which has been exercised by NHC), NHC is obligated to pay annual base rent for
the respective Health Care Facilities aggregating $15.2 million plus additional rent described below. During the second renewal term,
(which would commence January 1, 2007) NHC is required to pay annual base rent based on the then fair market rental of the proper-
ty as negotiated at that time between NHC and the Company. The Master Agreement also obligates NHC to pay as additional rent under
each Lease all payments of interest and principal and other payments due under each mortgage to which the conveyance of the respec-
tive Health Care Facility to us was subject or any refinancing of mortgage debt that matures or is required to be paid in its entirety dur-
ing the term of the Lease. In addition to base rent and debt service rent, NHC must pay percentage rent to NHI equal to 3% of the
increase in the gross revenue of each facility. Effective January 1, 2000, NHI amended its lease agreements with NHC to provide for
the calculation of percentage rent based on quarterly revenue increases rather than annual revenue increases. NHC paid $2.9 million as
percentage rent for 2001.
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repairs (including structural portions of the buildings, constituting a part of the Health Care Facilities) and other charges relating to the
ownership and operation of the Health Care Facilities. NHC is obligated at its expense to keep all improvements and fixtures and other
components of the Health Care Facilities covered by “all risk” insurance in an amount equal to the full replacement costs thereof, insur-
ance against boiler explosion and similar insurance, flood insurance if the land constituting the Health Care Facility is located within a
designated flood plain area and to maintain specified property damage insurance, protecting us as well as NHC at such Health Care
Facility. NHC is also obligated to indemnify and hold us harmless from all claims resulting from the use and occupancy of each Health
Care Facility by NHC or persons claiming under NHC and related activities, as well as to indemnify us against all costs related to any
release, discovery, cleanup and removal of hazardous substances or materials on, or other environmental responsibility with respect to,
each Health Care Facility leased by NHC.

Non-performing Leases/Loans, Foreclosure Properties/Lease Terminations and Performing Bankrupt Borrowers/Lessees

Non-Performing Loans and Leases

Autumn Hills Convalescent Centers, Inc. - In 1997, we funded a mortgage loan for Autumn Hills Convalescent Centers, Inc.
(“Autumn Hills”) in the original principal amount of $51,500,000. Collateral for the loan includes first mortgages on thirteen long-term
health care facilities in Texas, and certain corporate and personal guarantees. Principal and interest payments between April 2000 and
May 2001 were only partially made and the debtor filed for bankruptcy on May 15, 2001. No payments were made thereafter. Based
on these events and SFAS 114 analyses, we recorded impairments of $10,000,000 and $7,000,000 during 2001 and 2000, respectively,
to reduce the loan to our estimate of net realizable value. The debtor’s plan of reorganization which was confirmed on January 28, 2002,
requires the debtor to reaffirm the original debt and capitalized interest and commence monthly payments on April 10, 2002. Cur net
receivable balance, after the above writedowns, is $31,197,000, which amount we believe is realizable.

Two New Jersey Centers- We have loaned approximately $18,373,000 to the owners of two New Jersey facilities opened in early
2000. Each facility has 120 skilled nursing beds and 30 assisted living units. Neither facility has received a license to operate the assist-
ed living units, nor their full complement of beds. The facilities are operating at a negative net operating income and have changed their
management company. These facilities have not made loan payments since July 2001. We have limited personal guarantees of the own-
ers. Based on these events and SFAS 114 analyses, we recorded impairments of $5,304,000 during 2001 to reduce the loan to our esti-
mate of net realizable value. During the third quarter of 2001, we filed a foreclosure lawsuit against the borrower and a separate action
against the individual guarantors, We believe the collateral supports the carrying amount of $13,069,000 of this loan.

Manor House of Charlotte - An approximated $7,200,000 first mortgage loan to Manor House, Inc. went into payment default in
November 2001. The property is a newly constructed 110 unit assisted living facility in Charlotte, North Carolina. The owner and cor-
porate guarantor has offered to surrender possession to us if we will waive the corporate guarantee. While we have not accepted this
offer, our analysis of the future expected cash flows consistent with SFAS 114, the historical occupancy of the project and competition
in the market area resulted in the recordation of a $3.8 million writedown in mortgage loan value in the fourth quarter of 2001. We
believe the remaining carrying amount of $3,400,000, after the above writedown, is supported by the value of the collateral.

Foreclosure Properties and Lease Terminations

We operate, through an independent contractor, foreclosure properties in Washington, Massachusetts, New Hampshire, Kansas and
Missouri. The operating revenues and expenses of the foreclosure properties are included in the consolidated statements of income.
Additionally, we have terminated leases on and subsequently re-leased eleven assisted living complexes.

Washington State Properties - On October 16, 1998, we accepted deeds in lieu of foreclosure on four long-term care properties in
Washington State. Simultaneously with the receipt of the deeds to the properties, we entered into a management contract with a public
nursing home chain operating a number of other properties in Washington. We have included the operating revenues and expenses of
these facilities in our operating results since Cctober 1998. Commencing February 1, 2000, the management of these facilities has been
transferred to a subsidiary of NHC. In December 2000, one of the four facilities was closed. Although we have retained a local broker
to sell the properties, a satisfactory offer has yet to be received. Based on the SFAS 121 impairment analysis, we recorded an impair-
ment of $1,500,000 during 2001 and $2,446,000 during 2000. We believe that the carrying amount of these properties of $8,535,000
after the writedowns is realizable.

During 2001, we received notice from the state of Washington of an environmental contamination issue caused by a former owner
with regard to one of the properties. We are currently working with the state to design a clean-up plan. We are unable to estimate the
ultimate costs or range of costs that will be required to meet the state’s clean-up requirements.

New England Properties - [n the third quarter of 1999, we accepted deeds in lieu of foreclosure, recorded at approximately
$41,800,000, on the three nursing homes and one assisted living center in New Hampshire and four licensed nursing homes in
Massachusetts. We retained an operating subsidiary of NHC to manage the properties and we have included the operating revenues and
expenses of these facilities in our operating results since August 1999. During 2001, we sold the properties to a non-profit entity and
provided 100% seller financing to close the sale. We are accounting for this transaction under the deposit method in accordance with
the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 66, “Accounting for Sales of Real Estate”, (“SFAS 66”"). Consistent
with the deposit method, we have not recorded the sale of the assets and continue to record the results of operations of these properties
each period. As of December 31, 2001, NHI has received no cash from the buyer. Any future cash received from the buyer will be
reported as a deposit until the down payment and other criteria of SFAS 66 are met, at which time NHI will account for the sale under
the full accrual method. The new owner is aggressively seeking to refinance these properties. We believe that the carrying amount of
these properties of $35,117,000 is realizable.
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Kansas and Missouri Properties - In July 2001, we accepted deeds in lieu of foreclosure on nine nursing homes in Kansas and
Missouri and have recorded the operating revenues and expenses of these facilities since that date. NHC also has been engaged to man-
age these facilities. During 2001, prior to accepting deeds on these properties, we recorded a $4,000,000 writedown of our mortgage
note receivable from these properties. Management believes that the carrying amount of these properties of $19,593,000, after the
$4,000,000 writedown, is realizable.

Alterra Properties - In early 1998, we entered into a purchase-leaseback transaction with Alternative Living Centers, Inc., now
known as Alterra. The $41,000,000 transaction resulted in Alterra leasing eleven properties from us - four in Arizona, three in Florida,
three in Tennessee, and one in South Carolina. When Alterra defaulted on their March 2001 rent payment, we immediately terminated
the leases and arranged for new lessees. The new lessees took possession of the centers during the late spring and summer of 2001, We
have filed suit for damages against Alterra. Under the terms of the new leases, we have experienced reduced rental income this year
and anticipate continued reduced rental income over the next year. Based on reduced rental payments that have been and are expected
to be received on these properties, and in accordance with SFAS 121, we have recorded an impairment of $4,900,000 during 2001. We
believe that the combined carrying amount of these properties of $33,406,000 after the writedown is realizable.

Performing Bankrupt Borrowers and Lessees

Integrated Health Services, Inc. (“IHS”) Loan Participation - IHS filed bankruptcy in February 2000 and failed to make its required
mortgage payments to SouthTrust Bank on six Texas nursing homes. At that time, we owned a 50% participation in this loan with
SouthTrust Bank. Effective September 1, 2001, IHS deeded the six nursing homes to a subsidiary of NHI in return for the forgiveness
of the debt held jointly by SouthTrust Bank and us. We recorded these six nursing homes and certain non-recourse debt to SouthTrust
Bank at the estimated fair value of the properties of approximately $44,700,000. We lease the facilities to [HS under a 66-month lease
with minimum payments equal to approximately $3,078,000 per year plus additional rent based on cash flow of the facilities. We col-
lect these rent payments and service our debt to SouthTrust Bank, which debt service is substantially equal to the rent payments col-
lected. Through a separate participation agreement, we and SouthTrust each beneficially own 50% of the lease revenue. Our interest in
the lease revenue is represented by a note receivable from SouthTrust Bank. We have a legal right of offset as it relates to the non-
recourse debt and note receivable with SouthTrust Bank. Therefore, the note receivable offsets the non-recourse debt in the consoli-
dated balance sheet. During 2001, prior to accepting the deeds to these properties, NHI recorded a $3,000,000 write-down of its note
receivable. NHI believes that the carrying amount of its net investment in these properties of approximately $19,100,000, after the
$3,000,000 write-down, is realizable.

THS has the right to terminate its lease with us with 90 days notice. Lease payments commenced September 1, 2001 and are current.

Sun HealthCare - In the third quarter of 1999, SunRise HealthCare (“Sun”) filed for bankruptcy protection. We had three properties
which we leased to Sun. Sun rejected one of the leases effective January 31, 2001 and NHI re-leased the property to a third party for
approximately 82% of the previous rent payment by Sun. Under the new lease agreement, the third party has a purchase option of
$2,300,000. The other two properties are current in their lease payments, and the most recent Sun plan of reorganization provides for
their reaffirmation of the remaining two centers.

Mariner Health Care - Mariner (which entered bankruptcy in February 2000) has six properties in the 1993 REMIC collateral pool.
See Note 7. During 2000, NHI was informed by the master servicer of the REMIC that the Mariner properties were not making their
required debt service payments. NHI reduced the carrying value of its investment during 2000 by $2,446,000 to its current carrying
amount of approximately $30,000,000. Mariner has now recommenced its debt service payments to the 1993 REMIC and should
emerge from bankruptcy in 2002, reaffirming its debt obligation to the REMIC.

Loan, Realty and Security Loss

During 2001, we determined, based on events occurring during that year and based on the provisions of SFAS 114 and SFAS 121,
that impairments of certain of the investments mentioned above had occurred. As discussed above, these investments were affected by
bankruptcy filings, bankruptcy court rulings, non-receipt of payments and judgments about possible refinancing and other collateral val-
ues. It is possible that additional events could occur that would indicate a further impairment of the net carrying amount of our invest-
ments. If such events occur, we will record additional loan loss provisions and impairment losses in the periods such events are known.

At December 31, 2001, we determined that no allowance for loan losses was required. Loan loss provisions and property impair-
ments of $29,850,000 have been recorded during 2001 related to five mortgage loans totaling $124,068,000 (before writedowns) and
two owned property groups totaling $55,161,000 (before writedowns). The remaining portion of the loan, realty and security loss of
$5,709,000 relates to the write-down in 2001 for the permanent decline in value of the investment in Assisted Living Concepts
Debentures.

Proposed Sale of Real Estate Property

We have granted a purchase option to the lessee of the Florida health care center we acquired in a 2000 foreclosure. We anticipate
that this option will be exercised in 2002. We have previously written down the carrying value of the assets to a nominal amount and
have not received any payments from the lessee. We continue to offer for sale the three Washington state nursing homes discussed
previously.
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We have received commitment fees to make loans and to fund construction in progress to third parties for $1.5 million. Commitments
include construction financings which have closed but which have not been fully funded as of December 31, 2001 and also investment
amounts for which we have received a commitment fee but which have not been funded as of December 31, 2001.

The following table sets forth certain information regarding our commitments as of December 31, 2001.

Commitments
Facility Type Factlities Current Future Total
(in thousands)
Long-term care 1 $ 215 $ — $ 215
Hospital 1 1,792 — 1,792
Assisted Living 2 1,166 — 1,166
Commitments 4 $ 3,173 $ — $ 3,173

Sources of Revenues

General. Our revenues are derived primarily from mortgage interest income, rental income and the operation of Foreclosure
Properties. During 2001, mortgage interest income equaled $25.5 million of which all except $.4 million was from non-NHC borrowers.
Rental income totaled $46.0 million, 9.4% of which was from properties operated by NHC. The interest and rental payments are prima-
rily derived from the operations of the Health Care Facilities. The source and amount of revenues from such operations are determined
by (1) the licensed bed or other capacity of the Health Care Facilities, (ii) the occupancy rate of the Health Care Facilities, (iii) the extent
to which the services provided at each Health Care Facility are utilized by the patients, (iv) the mix of private pay, Medicare and Medicaid
patients at the Health Care Facilities, and (v) the rates paid by private paying patients and by the Medicare and Medicaid programs.
Facility operating revenues are derived from the operations of the Foreclosure Properties and are determined by similar factors.

Governmental and popular concerns regarding health care costs have and may continue to result in significant reductions in payments
to health care facilities, and there can be no assurance that future payment rates for either governmental or private health care plans will
be sufficient to cover cost increases in providing services to patients. Any changes in reimbursement policies which reduce reimbursement
to levels that are insufficient to cover the cost of providing patient care have and could continue to adversely affect revenues of our health-
related lessees and borrowers and thereby adversely affect those lessees’ and borrowers’ abilities to make their lease or debt payments to
us. Failure of the lessees or borrowers to make their lease or debt payments would have a direct and material adverse impact on us.

Medicare and Medicaid. A significant portion of the revenue of our Foreclosure Properties and our lessees and borrowers is derived
from governmental-funded reimbursement programs, such as Medicare and Medicaid.

Medicare is a federal health insurance program under the Social Security Act for individuals age 65 and over and certain chronical-
ly disabled individuals. The Balanced Budget Act of 1997 (BBA) made fundamental changes in the Medicare program which have
resulted in reduced levels of payment for a substantial portion of health care services. Amendments to the BBA Medicare enactments
were made in late 1999 and late 2000, which have enhanced operating revenues at Medicare certified lessees and borrowers.

Medicaid is a joint federal and state program designed to provide medical assistance to “medically indigent persons”. These pro-
grams are operated by state agencies which adopt their own medical reimbursement formula and standards, and rates and covered serv- -
ices vary from state to state. However, in many instances, revenues from Medicaid programs are insufficient to cover the actual costs
incurred in providing care to those patients.

The Medicare and Medicaid programs are highly regulated and subject to frequent and substantial changes resulting from legisla-
tion, adoption of rules and regulations, and administrative and judicial interpretations of existing law. Moreover, health care facilities
have experienced increasing pressures from private payors attempting to control health care costs, and reimbursement from private pay-
ors has in many cases effectively been reduced to levels approaching those of government payors.

Governmental Funding of Medicare and Medicaid. Government at both the federal and state levels has continued in its efforts to
reduce, or at least limit the growth of, spending for health care services, including services to be provided by our lessee’s or their oper-
ators. The BBA was enacted in August, 1997, which contained numerous Medicare and Medicaid cost-saving measures, as well as new
anti-fraud provisions. The BBA was projected to save $115 billion in Medicare spending over the next five years, and $13 billion in the
Medicaid program. Section 4711 of the BBA, entitled “Flexibility in Payment Methods for Hospital, Nursing Facility, ICF/MR, and
Home Health Services”, repealed the Boren Amendment, which has required that state Medicaid programs pay to nursing home
providers amounts adequate to enable them to meet government quality and safety standards; the Boren Amendment was previously the
foundation of litigation by nursing homes seeking rate increases. In place of the Boren Amendment, the BBA requires only that, for
services and items furnished on or after October 1, 1997, a state Medicaid program must provide for a public process for determination
of Medicaid rates of payment for nursing facility services, under which proposed rates, the methodologies underlying the establishment
of such rates, and justifications for the proposed rates are published, and which give providers, beneficiaries and other concerned state
residents a reasonable opportunity for review and comment on the proposed rates, methodologies and justifications. Several of the states
in which we have assets are actively seeking ways to reduce Medicaid spending for nursing home care by such methods as capitated
payments and substantial reductions in reimbursement rates. The BBA also requires that nursing homes transition to a prospective pay-
ment system under the Medicare program during a three-year “transition period” commencing with the first cost reporting period begin-
ning on or after July 1, 1998. Substantially all of the health care facilities in which we have invested commenced reimbursement under
this program effective January 1, 1999. We believe that the deduction in Medicare revenues have negatively impacted our additional
percentage rent and, in the case of renegotiated rents for troubled properties, the base rent of our skilled nursing facilities.

Page 10 National Health Investors, Inc.




The BBA also contains several new antifraud provisions. Given the recent enactment of the BBA, we are unable to predict the impact
of the BBA and its potential changes in state Medicaid reimbursement methodologies on the operations of its tenants or borrowers; how-
ever, any significant reduction in either Medicare or Medicaid payments could adversely affect their cash flows. Changes in certifica-
tion and participation requirements of the Medicare and Medicaid programs have restricted, and are likely to continue to restrict fur-
ther, eligibility for reimbursement under those programs. Failure to obtain and maintain Medicare and Medicaid certification by our
tenants or borrowers would result in denial of Medicare and Medicaid payments which could result in a significant loss of revenue to
those providers. In addition, private payors, including managed care payors, increasingly are demanding that providers accept dis-
counted fees or assume all or a portion of the financial risk for the delivery of health care services. Such measures may include capi-
tated payments whereby the provider is responsible for providing, for a fixed fee, all services needed by certain patients. Capitated pay-
ments can result in significant losses if patients require expensive treatment not adequately covered by the capitated rate. Efforts to
impose reduced payments, greater discounts and more stringent cost controls by government and other payors are expected to contin-
ue. Any reforms that significantly limit rates of reimbursement under the Medicare and Medicaid programs, therefore, could have a
material adverse effect on our tenants or borrowers. We are unable to predict what reform proposals or reimbursement limitations will
be adopted in the future or the effect such changes will have on its operations. No assurance can be given that such reforms will not
have a material adverse effect on us; however, we believe the most material negative impact occurred during 1999.

Congress addressed this financial distress in the Fall of 1999 through enactment of the Balanced Budget Refinement Act (BBRA). In
2000, Congress adjusted further the payment rates to skilled nursing facilities under the Benefits Improvement and Protection Act (BIPA).

The BBRA included a 4 percent across-the-board increase in payments to skilled nursing facilities for Fiscal Years 2001 and 2002
and a temporary 20 percent increase to 15 Resource Utilization Groups (RUGs) for patients considered medically complex. These
changes became effective on October 1, 2000.

The BIPA increased the inflation update to the full market basket in Fiscal Year 2001 and raised the nursing component of the RUGs
by 16.6 percent in an effort to improve PPS nursing staff ratios. Additionally, the BIPA spread the BBRA 20 percent increase to the
three rehabilitation RUGs across all 14 special rehabilitation RUGs as a 6.7 percent increase. The other RUGs changed in the BBRA
maintained the 20 percent increase. These changes went into effect on April 1, 2001.

The improvements brought about by BBRA and BIPA (including the 4 percent across-the-board increase in RUG payments, the 16.6
percent increase in nursing component, the changes in the SNF market basket, and the 20 percent RUGs add-ons) are all scheduled to
expire under currently enacted legislation on September 30, 2002. President Bush’s proposed budget assumes the expiration of these
improvements. The actuary for the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) estimates that the combined effect of the expi-
ration of these improvements would translate into a reduction of $56.25 per Medicare patient day. If these changes go into effect with-
out modification, they will have a material adverse effect on the results of operations on our foreclosure properties and the operations
of our borrowers and lessees.

Licensure and Certification. The health care industry is highly regulated by federal, state and local law, and is directly affected by
state and local licensing requirements, facility inspections, state and federal reimbursement policies, regulations concerning capital and
other expenditures, certification requirements, and other such laws, regulations and rules. Sanctions for failure to comply with these
regulations and laws include (but are not limited to) loss of licensure, fines, and loss of certification to participate in the Medicare and
Medicaid programs, as well as potential criminal penalties. The failure of any lessee or borrower to comply with such laws, require-
ments and regulations could affect its ability to operate the facility or facilities and could adversely affect such lessee’s or borrower’s
ability to make lease or debt payments to us.

In the past several years, due to rising health care costs, there has been an increased emphasis on detecting and eliminating fraud and
abuse in the Medicare and Medicaid programs. Payment of any consideration in exchange for referral of Medicare and Medicaid
patients is generally prohibited by federal statute, which subjects violators to severe penalties, including exclusion from the Medicare
and Medicaid programs, fines, and even prison sentences. In recent years, both federal and state governments have significantly
increased investigation and enforcement activity to detect and punish wrongdoers. In addition, legislation has been adopted at both state
and federal levels which severely restricts the ability of physicians to refer patients to entities in which they have a financial interest.

1t is anticipated that the trend toward increased investigation and enforcement activity in the area of fraud and abuse, as well as self-
referral, will continue in future years. Certain of our investments are with lessees or borrowers which are partially or wholly owned by
physicians. In the event that any lessee or borrower were to be found in violation of laws regarding fraud and abuse or self-referral, that
lessee’s or borrower’s ability to operate the facility as a health care facility could be jeopardized, which could adversely affect the
lessee’s or borrower’s ability to make lease or debt payments to us and thereby adversely affect us.

Certificates of Need. Certain Health Care Facilities in which we invest are also generally subject to state statutes which may require
regulatory approval, in the form of a certificate of need (“CON”) prior to the addition or construction of new beds, the addition of serv-
ices or certain capital expenditures. CON requirements are not uniform throughout the United States and are subject to change. We can-
not predict the impact of regulatory changes with respect to CON’s on the operations of our lessees and mortgagees; however, in our
primary market areas, a significant reduction in new construction of long term care beds has occurred.

Investment Policies

Our investment objectives are (i) to provide current income for distribution to our stockholders through investments primarily in
health care related facilities, (ii) to provide the opportunity to realize capital growth resulting from appreciation, if any, in the residual
value of our portfolio properties, and (iii) to preserve and protect stockholders’ capital. There can be no assurance that these objectives
will be realized. It is not our intention to sell our properties and reinvest in other investments for the purpose of realizing gains result-
ing from the appreciation of value of those properties; we, however, may consider selling properties in the event circumstances should
arise which would make a sale advisable or attractive, or to retire principal indebtedness.
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will instead focus on monitoring and enhancing our current investments, with specific emphasis on our foreclosure properties. We plan to
continue our goal of maintaining a one to one ratio of debt to shareholder’s equity and reinstating our previous investment grade rating. As
the amendments to BBA, if they are continued, generate renewed investment confidence in the long term care industry, we will once again
compete with health care providers and investors, including other real estate investment trusts, for additional health care related invest-
ments. In evaluating potential investments, we consider such factors, as (i) the geographic area and type of property, (ii) the location, con-
struction quality, condition and design of the property, (iii) the current and anticipated cash flow and its adequacy to meet operational needs
and lease or mortgage obligations and to provide a competitive market return on equity to our investors, (1v) the growth, tax and regulato-
ry environments of the communities in which the properties are located, (v) occupancy and demand for similar health care facilities in the
same or nearby communities, (vi) the quality, experience and creditworthiness of the management operating the facilities located on the
property; and (vii) the mix of private and government sponsored patients. There can be no assurances that these intentions will be realized.

We will not, without the prior approval of a majority of the Board of Directors, enter into any joint venture relationships with or
acquire from or sell to any director, officer, or employee of NHC or NHI, or any affiliate thereof, as the case may be, any of our assets
or other property.

The Board of Directors, without the approval of the stockholders, may alter our investment policies if they determine that such a
change is in our best interests and our stockholders best interests. The methods of implementing our investment policies may vary as
new investment and financing techniques are developed or for other reasons.

We may incur additional indebtedness in the future to make investments in health care related facilities or business when it is advis-
able in the opinion of the Board of Directors. We may negotiate other lines of credit, or arrange for other short or long term borrowings
from banks, NHC or otherwise. We have and may arrange for long term borrowings from institutional investors or through public offer-
ings. We have invested and may in the future invest in properties subject to existing loans or secured by mortgages, deeds of trust or
similar liens with favorable terms or REMIC investments.

Advisory Agreement

We entered into the Advisory Agreement on Gctober 17, 1991 with NHC as “Advisor” under which NHC provides management
and advisory services to us during the term of the Advisory Agreement. We believe the Advisory Agreement benefits us by providing
access to NHC’s extensive experience in the ownership and management of long-term care facilities and retirement centers. Under the
Advisory Agreement, we engaged NHC to use its best efforts (a) to present to us a continuing and suitable investment program consis-
tent with our investment policies adopted by the Board of Directors from time to time; (b) to manage our day-to-day affairs and oper-
ations; and (c) to provide administrative services and facilities appropriate for such management. In performing its obligations under
the Advisory Agreement, NHC is subject to the supervision of and policies established by our Board of Directors.

The Advisory Agreement was initially for a stated term which expired December 31, 1997. The Agreement is now on a year to year
term, but terminable on 90 days notice, and we may terminate the Advisory Agreement for cause at any time. For its services under the
Advisory Agreement, the Advisor is entitled to annual compensation in a base amount of $1.6 million, payable in monthly installments
of $135,417. The full fee, although earned, will be prorated to the extent that funds from operations (FFO) is less than $2.00 per share.
Under the Advisory Agreement, we reimburse NHC for certain out of pocket expenses including those incurred in connection with bor-
rowed money, taxes, fees to independent contractors, legal and accounting services and stockholder distributions and communications.
For 1993 and later years the annual compensation is calculated on a formula which is related to the increase in Funds from Cperations
per common share (as defined in the Advisory Agreement). In 2001, the annual compensation expensed under the Advisory Agreement
was approximately $2,469.000.

The NHI board, in recognition of the fact that it chose to apply our FFO to debt payments during half of 2000 and three quarters of
2001, rather than distribute dividends, amended the Advisory Agreement to delete the requirement that a $2.00 per share dividend be
paid. The fee, however, is still dependent upon obtaining the stated FFO objective.

Pursuant to the Advisory Agreement, NHC manages all of our day-to-day affairs and provides all such services through its person-
nel. The Advisory Agreement provides that without regard to the amount of compensation received by NHC under the Advisory
Agreement, NHC shall pay all expenses in performing its obligations including the employment expenses of the officers and directors
and personnel of NHC providing services to us. The Advisory Agreement further provides that we shall pay the expenses incurred with
respect to and allocable to the prudent operation and business of NHI including any fees, salaries, and other employment costs, taxes
and expenses paid to our directors, officers and employees who are not also employees of NHC. Currently, other than the directors who
are not employees of NHC, we do not have any officers or employees who are not also employees of NHC. Our three executive offi-
cers, Mr. W. Andrew Adams, Mr. Robert G. Adams and Mr. LaRoche are employees of NHC and all of their fees, salaries and employ-
ment costs are paid by NHC, but a portion of their bonus, if any, may be allocated for their duties to us.

We have implemented an option exercise loan guaranty program, the purpose of which is to facilitate Directors and key personnel
exercising options to purchase NHI common stock. Pursuant to Board of Directors’ resolution unanimously passed, each Director and
Key Employee to whom options to purchase NHI common shares have been granted is eligible to benefit from a Company guaranty on
up to $100,000 per year of loans made from commercial banking institutions, the proceeds of which are used to exercise NHI options.
The guarantee is structured as follows: Option holders must pledge to NHI 125% of the loan amount in publicly traded stock as addi-
tional collateral for the guarantee; the option holder must personally guarantee the loan to the bank; the interest rate charged by the bank
and all expenses pertaining to the loan are to be borne by the Director or Employee and the maximum outstanding amount of loan guar-
antees is $5.0 million. Furthermore, this facility is to have a one year term and be renewable at the Board’s discretion. Outstanding loans
are detailed in the 2002 Proxy Statement which was distributed to shareholders with this report.
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Item 2. Properties

NHI PROPERTIES

LONG TERM CARE

Center City Beds
ALABAMA

NHC HealthCare, Anniston Anniston 151
NHC HealthCare, Moulton Moulton 136
ARIZONA

Estrella Care and Rehab Avondale 161
COLORADO

Brookside Inn Castle Rock 95
FLORIDA

Alachua Nursing Home Gainesville 120
Ayers Health and Rehabilitation Center Trenton 120
Bayonet Point Health & Rehabilitation Center Hudson 180
Bear Creek Nursing Center Hudson 120
Brighton Gardens of Maitland* Maitland 39
Brighton Gardens of West Palm Beach* West Palm Beach 47
Brooksville Healthcare Center Brooksville 180
Cypress Cove Care Center Crystal River 120
Heather Hill Nursing Home New Port Richey 120
Health Center at Huber Gardens St. Petersburg 96
Jefferson Nursing Center Monticello 60
Lake Park of Madison Lake Park 119
Miracle Hill Nursing & Convalescent Tallahassee 120
Nursing Center at Mercy Miami 120
Oakview Nursing Williston 180
Osceola Health Care Center St. Cloud 120
Parkway Health and Rehabilitation Center Stuart 177
Plantation Gardens Rehab & Nursing Ocoee 120
Pine Lake Nursing Home Greeneville 58
Royal Oak Nursing Center Dade City 120
The Health Center of Merritt Island Merritt Island 180
The Health Center of Plant City Plant City 180
GEORGIA

Ashton Woods Rossville 157
Forest Lake Manor Martinez 100
Jennings Health Care Center Augusta 100
Meadowbrook Nursing Center Tucker 144
Moss Oaks Health Care Center Pooler 122
Rossville Convalescent Center Rossville 112
West Lake Manor Augusta 100
IDAHO

Grangeville Care Center Grangeville 60
Sunny Ridge Care Center* Nampa 46
KANSAS

Emporia Rehabilitation Center Emporia 79
Hoisington Rehabilitation Center Hoisington 62
Larned HealthCare Center Lamed 69
Chanute HealthCare Center Chanute 84
Haysville HealthCare Center Haysville 120
Sedgwick HealthCare Center Sedgwick 79
Council Grove HealthCare Center Council Grove 94
KENTUCKY

NHC HealthCare, Dawson Springs Dawson Springs 80
NHC HealthCare, Glasgow Glasgow 194
NHC HealthCare, Madisonville Madisonville 94
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ANy B AARIVE UARIE (continued)

Center City Beds
MASSACHUSETTS

John Adams Nursing Home Quincy 71
Buckley Nursing Home Greenfield 120
Buckley Nursing & Retirement Center Holyoke 102
Longmeadow of Taunton Taunton 100
MISSOURI

Charleviox HealthCare Center St. Charles 142
Clayton HealthCare Center Clayton 282
Columbia HealthCare Center Columbia 141
Florissant Nursing Center Florissant 120
Hunter Acres Nursing Center Sikeston 120
NHC HealthCare, Desloge Desloge 120
NHC HealthCare, Joplin Joplin 126
NHC HealthCare, Kennett Kennett 170
NHC HealthCare, Maryland Heights St. Louis 220
NHC HealthCare, St. Charles St. Charles 120
Oak View Living Center Jefferson City 120
Ozark Nursing Center West Plains 120
Spanish Lake Nursing Center Florissant 120
Joplin HealthCare Center Joplin 92
NEW HAMPSHIRE

Epsom Manor, Inc. Epsom 108
Maple Leaf Health Care Center Manchester 114
Villa Crest* Manchester 123
NEW JERSEY

Regal Manor Health Care Center* Toms River 120
Royal Health Gate Nursing & Rehab* Trenton 120
Brighton Gardens of Edison* Edison 30
SOUTH CAROLINA

NHC HealthCare, Anderson Anderson 290
NHC HealthCare, Greenwood Greenwood 152
NHC HealthCare, Laurens Laurens 176
TENNESSEE

NHC HealthCare, Athens Athens 98
NHC HealthCare, Chattanooga Chattanooga 207
NHC HealthCare, Columbia Columbia 106
NHC HealthCare, Dickson* Dickson 191
NHC HealthCare, Franklin Franklin 80
NHC HealthCare, Hendersonville Hendersonville 117
NHC HealthCare, Hillview Columbia 92
NHC HealthCare, Johnson City* Johnson City 160
NHC HealthCare, Knoxville Knoxville 139
NHC HealthCare, Lewisburg Lewisburg 102
NHC HealthCare, McMinnville McMinnville 150
NHC HealthCare, Milan Milan 123
NHC HealthCare, Nashville Nashville 124
NHC HealthCare, Oakwood Lewisburg 60
NHC HealthCare, Pulaski Pulaski 102
NHC HealthCare, Scott Lawrenceburg 62
NHC HealthCare, Sequatchie Dunlap 120
NHC HealthCare, Smithville* Smithville 107
NHC HealthCare, Somerville* Somerville 72
NHC HealthCare, Sparta Sparta 150
NHC HealthCare, Springfield Springfield 107
TEXAS

Autumn Hills Convalescent Center Houston 116
Autumn Hills Convalescent Center Richmond 99
Autumn Hills Convalescent Center Sugarland 150
Autumn Hills Convalescent Center Tomball 150
Bonham Nursing Center Bonham 65
Canterbury Villa of Falfurrias Falfurrias 98
Canterbury Villa of Kingsville Kingsville 162
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LONG TERM CARE (continued)

Center City Beds
College Street Nursing Center Beaumont 50
Columbus Care Center Columbus 129
Conroe Convalescent Center Conroe 108
Denison Manor Denison 71
Fair Park Nursing Center Huntsville 92
Friendswood Arms Convalescent Center Friendswood 102
Galaxy Manor Nursing Center Cleveland 148
Golden Charm Nursing Center Liberty 118
Heritage Forest Lane Dallas 120
Heritage Manor - Canton Canton 110
Heritage Manor - Mesquite Dallas 149
Heritage Oaks Arlington 204
Heritage Village Dallas 280
Lindbergh Health Care Center Beaumont 82
Shoreline Health Care Center Taft 152
Terry Haven Nursing Center Mt. Vernon 65
Town Park Convalescent Center Houston 125
Willis Convalescent Center Willis 114
Willow Bend Care Center Mesquite 162
Winterhaven Houston 160
VIRGINIA

Brian Center of Alleghany Low Moor 60
Brian Center of Fincastle Fincastle 60
Kegley Manor Bastian 57
Maple Grove Health Care Lebanon 60
NHC HealthCare, Bristol Bristol 120
The Springs Nursing Center Hot Springs 60
Willow Creek Health Care Center Midlothian 120
WASHINGTON

Highline Care Center Seattle 73
Park Ridge Care Center Seattle 115
Park West Care Center Seattle 139
Sehome Park Care Center Bellingham 115
WISCONSIN

Honey Creek Health & Rehab Center Milwaukee 196
ACUTE CARE PROPERTIES

KENTUCKY

Kentucky River Hospital Jackson 55
MEDICAL OFFICE BUILDINGS

Center City Footage
FLORIDA

North Okaloosa Crestview 27,017
ILLINOCIS

Crossroads Mt, Vernon 12,910
KENTUCKY

Scott Hospital Georgetown 24,824
LOUISIANA

Women’s & Children’s Lafayette 30,070
TEXAS

Pasadena Pasadena 61,500
Hill Regional Hillsboro 23,000
UTAH

Pioneer Valley Salt Lake City 69,910
WASHINGTON

Capital Medical Office Building Olympia 67,152
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AL A ARTIVIILIN D LIRLIN TIVIRG

Sterling House - Daytona Beach
Suffridge Drive Group Home
Tunis Street Group Home
Walnut Street Group Home
Wynwood

Daytona Beach
Bonita Springs
Jacksonville
Starke
Maitland

Center City Beds
IDAHO
Sunny Ridge Care Center* Nampa 117
MISSOURI
Lake St. Charles Retirement Center* St. Charles 155
NEW HAMPSHIRE
Heartland Place Epsom 60
TENNESSEE
Colonial Hill Retirement Center Johnson City 63
Parkwood Retirement Center Chattanooga 31
TEXAS
Remington Retirement Community* Corpus Christi 60
Tiffany Walk Congregate Center Tomball 60
ASSISTED LIVING AND DEVELOPMENTALLY DISABLED
Center City Beds
ARIZONA
Clare Bridge - Glendale Glendale 36
Clare Bridge - Tanque Verde Tucson 42
Sterling House - Gilbert Gilbert 100
Sterling House - Tucson Tucson 92
FLORIDA
19th Street Group Home Gainesville 6
107th Place Group Home Belleview 6
Bessent Road Group Home Starke 6
Brighton Gardens of Maitland* Maitland 102
Brighton Gardens of West Palm Beach* West Palm Beach 104
Clare Bridge - Maitland Maitland 38
Claudia Drive Group Home Jacksonville 6
Coletta Drive Group Home Orlando 6
Frederick Avenue Group Home Daytona Beach 6
High Desert Court Group Home Jacksonville 6
Plaza Oval Group Home Casselberry 6
Rosewood Group Home Ormond Beach 6
Second Street Group Home Ocala 6
Somerset on Lake Saunders Tavares 66
Spring Street Group Home Lake City 6
60
6
6
6
78
S0

Park Place of St. Augustine

IDAHO
Sunny Ridge Care Center*

MISSOURI
Lake St. Charles Retirement Center*

NEW JERSEY

Brighton Gardens of Edison*

Regal Manor Health Care Center*
Royal Health Gate Nursing & Rehab*

NORTH CARCLINA
Manorhouse - Charlotte

SOUTH CARCLINA
Sterling House - Conway

TENNESSEE

717 Cheatam Street

305 West Hillcrest Drive
307 West Hillcrest Drive
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St. Augustine
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St. Charles
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ASSISTED LIVING AND DEVELOPMENTALLY DISABLED (continued)

Center City Beds
Sterling House - Gallatin Gallatin 49
Sterling House - Kingsport Kingsport 49
Sterling House - Tullahoma Tullahoma 49
NHC HealthCare, Dickson* Dickson 20
NHC HealthCare, Johnson City* Johnson City 11
NHC HealthCare, Somerville* Somerville 12
NHC HealthCare, Smithville* Smithville 7
TEXAS

Brighton Gardens of Preston Road Dallas 109
Remington Retirement Community* Corpus Christi 30

*These facilities are listed in multiple categories.

REAL ESTATE MORTGAGE INVESTMENT CONDUITS
20.0% participating interest 14 Properties 1,971
5.2% participating interest 25 Properties 2,895

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are not subject to any material pending litigation, although a number of our operators or mortgagors are currently in bankruptcy
and/or have multiple pending medical liability suits. See “Foreclosure Properties”. The Health Care Facilities are subject to claims and suits
in the ordinary course of business. Our lessees and mortgagees have indemnified and will continue to indemnify us against all liabilities
arising from the operation of the Health Care Facilities, and will indemnify us against environmental or title problems affecting the real
estate underlying such facilities. While there are lawsuits pending against certain of the owners and/or lessees of the Health Care Facilities,
management believes that the ultimate resolution of all pending proceedings will have no material adverse effect on us or our operations.

Through the operation of our 21 foreclosure properties, we are subject to professional and general liability litigation for the provi-
sion of patient care. The entire long-term care industry has seen a dramatic increase in personal injury/wrongful death claims based on
alleged negligence by nursing homes and their employees in providing care to residents. We have maintained insurance coverage for
this type of litigation. We are subject to certain claims, none of which, in management's opinion, would be material to our financial
position or results of operations.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
(a) The 2001 Annual Meeting of the Shareholders was held on April 26, 2001.

(b) Matters voted upon at the meeting are as follows:

PROPOSAL NO. 1: Election of Ted H. Welch and Richard F. LaRoche, Jr. to serve as directors for terms of three years or until their
successors have been fully elected and qualified. Election of Robert A. McCabe, Jr. to the unexpired term of Jack Tyrrell, a director
whose term would have expired in 2002,

% of Total
Outstanding Shares
For Abstain Voting For
Ted Welch 22,922,499 504,059 97.8%
Richard F. LaRoche, Jr. 22,695,769 730,789 96.9%
Robert A. McCabe, Jr. 22,905,963 520,595 97.8%
PROPOSAL NO. 2: Ratify the appointment of Arthur Andersen LLP as our independent accountant.
% of Total
QOutstanding Shares
For Against Abstain Voting For
23,349,895 31,537 45,126 99.7%

PART IT

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Shareholder Matters

On October 16, 1996, the NHI Board of Directors, pursuant to powers granted by NHI's charter, changed the limit on the percent-
age of ownership which any person may have in the outstanding common stock of NHI from a limit of 7.0% (as passed on October 17,
1995) to a limit of 9.9%. The limit on ownership of any other class of stock (including issues convertible into common stock) remains
at 9.9% of the outstanding stock.
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1 order to qualify lor the beneliClal tax treauncent accoraed to a Kipll, wWo Imust make quaricrly distributions to nolders ol our
Common Stock equal on an annual basis to at least 90% of our REIT taxable income (excluding net capital gains), as defined in the
Code. Cash available for distribution to our stockholders is primarily derived from interest payments received on our mortgages and
from rental payments received under our leases. All distributions will be made by us at the discretion of the Board of Directors and will
depend on our cash flow and earnings, our financial condition, bank covenants contained in our financing documents and such other
factors as the Board of Directors deems relevant. Our REIT taxable income is calculated without reference to our cash flow. Therefore,
under certain circumstances, we may not have received cash sufficient to pay our required distributions.

Commeon Stock Market Prices and Dividends

Cur common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol NHI. The closing price for NHI stock on February
15, 2002 was $14.37. As of December 31, 2001, there were approximately 1,289 holders of record of shares and we estimate that as of
such date there were in addition in excess of 12,000 beneficial owners of the shares.

High and low stock prices and dividends for the last two years were:

2601 2000

Cash Cash

Sales Price Dividends Sales Price Dividends

Quarter Ended High Low Declared High Low Declared
March 31 $ 12.1100 $ 7.5000 $ — $ 16.62350 $ 11.4375 $ .64
June 30 11.6500 8.5500 —_ 12.5000 9.7500 .64
September 30 14.20¢0 2.9500 — 11.3750 4.8750 —
December 31 15.5000 12.2000 45 7.8750 5.5625 —

Ttem 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table represents our financial information for the five years ended December 31, 2001. This financial information has
been derived from financial statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-K and should be read in conjunction with those financial
statements and accompanying footnotes.

NATIONAL HEALTH INVESTORS, INC.
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
(dollars in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Net revenues $ 139,171 $ 147514 $ 131,158 $ 106,552 $ 111,410
Net income (loss) (63 33,724 53,618 69,645 75,388
Net income (loss) per share

Basic $ (0.08) $ 1.31 $ 2.13 $ 2.72 $ 3.01

Diluted (0.08) 1.31 2.13 2.69 2.92
Mortgages and other investments, net $ 324,230 $ 429,963 $ 441,906 $ 495,964 $ 479,194
Real estate properties, net 323,266 278,004 316,021 245,538 200,069
Total assets 672,630 766,977 788,545 769,198 753,033
Long term debt 164,464 143,660 172,870 151,559 155,659
Credit facilities — 83,000 88,000 58,500 —
Convertible subordinated debentures 62,643 114,281 95,741 100,096 119,038
Total stockholders’ equity 397,793 397,409 392,640 424,660 444,080
Common shares outstanding 26,004,318 24,392,157 24,382,987 24,364,391 24,753,570
Weighted average common shares

Basic 24,466,850 24,383,932 24,365,027 24,964,047 24,394,044

Diluted 24,466,850 24,564,873 24,367,529 28,689,192 28,887,987
Common dividends declared per share $ 0.45 $ 1.280 $ 2.960 $ 2.960 $ 2.960

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Overview

National Health Investors, Inc. (“NHI” or the “Company”) is a real estate investment trast (“REIT”) that invests primarily in income
producing health care properties with emphasis on the long-term care sector. As of December 31, 2001, NHI had interests in real estate
owned, and investments in mortgages, real estate mortgage investment conduits (“REMICs”), preferred stock and marketable securi-
ties resulting in total invested assets of $647.0 million. NHI’s mission is to invest in health care real estate which generates current
income that will be distributed to stockholders. NHI has pursued this mission by making mortgage loans and acquiring properties to
lease nationwide primarily in the long-term health care industry. Current conditions make it unlikely that any material new investments
in health care properties will occur during 2002. Instead, NHI is monitoring and improving its existing properties.
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As of December 31, 2001, we were diversified with investments in 193 health care facilities located in 24 states consisting of 142
long-term care facilities, one acute care hospital, eight medical office buildings, 18 assisted living facilities, seven retirement centers
and 17 residential projects for the developmentally disabied. These investments consisted of approximately $222.5 million aggregate
principal amount of loans to 22 borrowers, $111.0 million of purchase leaseback transactions with 10 lessees and $36.4 million invest-
ed in REMIC pass through certificates backed by first mortgage loans to ten operators. Of these 193 facilities, 21 were acquired through
foreclosure and are owned and operated by us and 60 are leased to National HealthCare Corporation (“NHC”). The 21 owned and oper-
ated facilities are managed by subsidiaries of NHC. NHC is our investment advisor. Consistent with our strategy of diversification, we
have reduced the portion of our portfolio operated or managed by NHC from 100.0% of total invested assets on October 17, 1991 to
20.4% of total invested assets on December 31, 2001.

At December 31, 2001, 53.77% of the total invested assets of the health care facilities were operated by public operators, 36.85%
by regional operators, and 9.38% by small operators.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires us
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and lia-
bilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates and cause our reported net income to vary significantly from period to period.

In December 2001, the SEC requested that all registrants list their three to five most “critical accounting policies” in MD&A. The
SEC indicated that a “critical accounting policy” is one which is both important to the portrayal of the Company’s financial condition
and results and requires management’s most difficult, subjective or complex judgments, often as a result of the need to make estimates
about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain. We believe that our following accounting policies fit this definition:

Valuations of and Impairments to Our Investments

Since 1999 the long-term health care industry has experienced material reductions in government and private insurance reimburse-
ments. While some legislative relief was granted in 2000 and 2001, additional reductions in reimbursement have been proposed for the
next fiscal year of the federal government. The long-term health care industry has also experienced a dramatic increase in profession-
al liability claims and in the cost of insurance to cover such claims. These factors have combined to cause a number of bankruptcy fil-
ings, bankruptcy court rulings and court judgments about refinancing for our lessees and mortgagees. Based on events occurring dur-
ing each of the last three years, we determined that impairment of certain of our investments had occurred.

Decisions about valuations and impairments of our investments require significant judgements and estimates on the part of man-
agement. For real estate properties, the need to recognize an impairment is evaluated on a property by property basis in accordance with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived
Assets to be Disposed of” (“SFAS 121”). Recognition of an impairment is based upon estimated future cash flows from a property com-
pared to the carrying value of the property. For notes receivable, impairment recognition is based upon an evaluation of the estimated
collectibility of loan payments and general economic conditions on a specific loan basis in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 114, “Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan - An Amendment of FASB Statements No. 5 and
15”. While we believe that the carrying amounts of our properties and notes receivable are realizable, it is possible that future events
could require us to make significant adjustments or revisions to these estimates.

Revenue Recognition - Mortgage Interest and Rental Income

We collect interest and rent from our customers. Generally our policy is to recognize revenues on an accrual basis as earned. However,
there are certain of our customers for which we have determined, based on insufficient historical collections and the lack of expected future
collections, that revenue for interest or rent is not realizable. For these nonperforming investments, our policy is to recognize interest or rental
income only in the period when payments are made. This policy could cause our revenues to vary significantly from period to period.

REIT Status and Taxes

We believe that we have operated our business so as to qualify as a REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) and we intend to continue to operate in such a manner, but no assurance can be given that we
will be able to qualify at all times. If we qualify as a REIT, we will generally not be subject to federal corporate income taxes on our
net income that is currently distributed to its stockholders. This treatment substantially eliminates the “double taxation” (at the corpo-
rate and stockholder levels) that typically applies to corporate dividends. Our failure to continue to qualify under the applicable REIT
qualification rules and regulations would cause us to owe state and federal income taxes and would have a material adverse impact on
our financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

We are aware of certain income tax contingencies with regard to our use of an independent contractor to manage certain of our fore-
closure properties. In order to fully resolve the contingencies, we are in the process of requesting from the Internal Revenue Service
(“IRS”) closing agreements regarding each of these contingencies. It is possible that the IRS will not rule in our favor. While we pro-
vide reserves for tax contingencies, an unfavorable ruling by the IRS could result in the assessment of taxes, penalties and interest by
the IRS that are material to our financial statements taken as a whole and could also result in the loss of our status as a real estate invest-
ment trust, which would have a significant adverse impact on our financial position, results of operations and cash flows.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
Sources and Uses of Funds

We have generated net cash from operating activities during 2001 totaling $59.8 million compared to $63.6 million in the prior year.
The primary reason for this year’s decrease was a decrease in net income offset partially by an increase in the provision for loan loss-
es and property impairments, unrealized losses on marketable securities, and an increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities.
Net cash from operating activities generally includes net income plus non-cash expenses, such as depreciation and amortization and
provision for investment losses, and working capital changes.

Net cash provided by investing activities during 2001 totaled $41.9 million compared to $29.2 million in the prior year. Cash flows pro-
vided from investing activities during 2001 included collections and prepayments on mortgage notes receivable of $31.7 million compared
to $47.6 million for the prior year. Marketable securities were sold and converted to cash or notes receivable of $17.9 million during 2001.

Cash flows used in investing activities during 2001 included investments in real estate properties of $1.9 million and investment in
mortgage notes receivable of $5.8 million. Cash flows used in investing activities in the prior period included investments in real estate
properties of $3.2 million and in mortgage notes receivable of $28.3 million.

Net cash used in financing activities during 2001 totaled $135.3 million compared to $62.3 million in the prior year. Cash flows used
in financing activities for 2001 included the repayment of credit facilities of $83.0 million, payments of convertible debentures of $37.8
million, principal payments on long-term debt of $14.5 million and dividends paid to preferred stockholders of $1.9 million. This com-
pares to prior year activity of payments of credit facilities of $28.3 million, principal payments on long term debt of $11.5 million and
dividends paid to stockholders of $51.0 million.

Cash flow provided by financing activities during 2001 included proceeds of $9.6 million from long term debt. Cash flows provid-
ed by financing activities in the prior period included $20.0 million from convertible debentures issued and $3.0 million from preferred
stock sold to NHC, our investment advisor.

NHI did not make any cash dividend distribution during the first three quarters of 2001. However, a 45 cent per share dividend was
declared to holders of record on December 28, 2001, payable January 28, 2002. We believe this distribution satisfies REIT distribution
requirements for 2001. The discontinuance of dividends for the first three quarters primarily reflects the decline in the Company’s tax-
able income, the significant principal payments required by the Company’s bank credit facility and restrictive covenants required by
that same facility. See “Liquidity Demands and Capital Raising Alternatives” for additional comments.

Commitments

At December 31, 2001, we were committed, subject to due diligence and financial performance goals, to fund approximately $1.5
million in health care real estate projects, of which $1.3 million is expected to be funded within the next 12 months. The commitments
include additional investments for one long-term health care center, one hospital, and one assisted living facility, all at rates ranging
from 10.0% to 11.5%.

NHI is currently limited in its ability to make new investments due to a lack of availability of reasonably priced capital. However,
as discussed below, we believe we have sufficient liquidity to finance current investments for which we are committed as well as to
repay or refinance borrowings at or prior to their maturity.

Debt and Related Guarantees

As more fully disclosed in Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, NHI, NHC and National Health Realty, Inc. (“NHR”)
have debt obligations originally financed through National Health Corporation (“National”) and its sole shareholder, the National
Health Corporation Leveraged Employee Stock Ownership Plan and Trust (the “ESOP”).

In regard to debt financed through the ESOP, the lending institutions have released us from our corporate guarantee. We remain pri-
marily obligated to National on our $17,387,000 balance.

Liquidity Demands

NHI faced significant liquidity demands resulting from short term principal repayments required by our senior secured bank credit
facility during 2000 and 2001. The bank credit facility was paid in full and ahead of schedule in 2001.

In order to address the maturity of $37.8 million of subordinated convertible debentures that matured on January 2, 2001, we issued
$20.0 million of senior subordinated convertible debentures on December 29, 2000, a portion of the proceeds of which, along with cash
from operations, were used to retire that indebtedness. By December 31, 2001 only $6,152,000 of these senior subordinated debentures
remained outstanding, the balance having converted into common stock.

Cur previously unsecured line of credit agreement was originaily scheduled to mature October 10, 2000. After a 30-day extension
of the line of credit maturity and a principal payment of $31.0 million, our senior unsecured line of credit agreement and its $25.0 mil-
lion unsecured term credit note were combined into an $84.0 million senior secured bank credit facility in December 2000. This entire
credit facility was paid in full and ahead of schedule on December 28, 2001. We accomplished this by not paying common stock divi-
dends for two quarters in 2000 and three quarters of 2001, plus using cash received from principal repayments from our outstanding
third party mortgage notes.

We declared a fourth quarter dividend of $.45 per share payable on January 28, 2002. We believe this satisfies our REIT distribu-
tion requirements for 2001. Beginning with the first quarter of 2002, we expect to resume paying regular quarterly dividends.
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Non-Performing Leans/Leases, Foreclosure Properties/Lease Terminations and Performing Bankrupt Borrewers/Lessees
Non-Performing Loans and Leases

Autumn Hills Convalescent Centers, Inc. - In 1997, we funded a mortgage loan for Autumn Hills Convalescent Centers, Inc.
(“Autumn Hills™) in the original principal amount of $51,500,000. Collateral for the loan includes first mortgages on thirteen long-term
health care facilities in Texas, and certain corporate and personal guarantees. Principal and interest payments between April 2000 and
May 2001 were only fitfully made and the debtor filed for bankruptcy on May 15, 2001. No payments were made thereafter. Based on
these events and SFAS 114 analyses, we recorded impairments of $10,000,000 and $7,900,000 during 2001 and 2000, respectively, to
reduce the loan to our estimate of net realizable value. The debtor’s plan of reorganization, which was confirmed on january 28, 2002,
requires the debtor to reaffirm the original debt and capitalized interest and commence monthly payments on April 10, 2002. Gur net
receivable balance, after the above writedowns, is $31,197,000, which amount we believe is realizable.

Two New Jersey Centers- We have loaned approximately $18,373,000 to the owners of two New Jersey facilities opened in early
2000. Each facility has 120 skilled nursing beds and 30 assisted living units. Neither facility has received a license to operate the assist-
ed living units, nor their full complement of beds. The facilities are operating at a negative net operating income, and have recently
changed their management company. These facilities have not made loan payments since July 2001. We have limited personal guaran-
tees of the owners. Based on these events and SFAS 114 analyses, we recorded impairments of $5,304,000 during 2001 to reduce the
loan to our estimate of net realizable value. During the third quarter of 2001, we filed a foreclosure lawsuit against the borrower and a
separate action against the individual guarantors. After the above writedown, we believe the collateral supports the carrying amount of
$13,069,000 of this loan at December 31, 2001.

Manor House of Charlotte - An approximated $7,200,000 first mortgage loan to Manor House, Inc. went into payment default in
November 2001. The property is a newly constructed 110 unit assisted living facility in Charlotte, North Carolina. The owner and cor-
porate guarantor has offered to surrender possession to us if we will waive the corporate guarantee. While we have not accepted this
offer, our analysis of the future expected cash flows consistent with SFAS 114, historical occupancy of the project and competition in
the market area resulted in the recordation of a $3,800,000 writedown in mortgage loan value in the fourth quarter of 2001. We believe
the remaining carrying amount of $3,400,000, after the above writedown, is supported by the value of the collateral.

Foreclosure Properties/Lease Terminations

We operate, through an independent contractor, foreclosure properties in Washington, Massachusetts, New Hampshire, Kansas and
Missouri. The operating revenues and expenses of the foreclosure properties are included in the consolidated statements of income.
Additionally, we have terminated leases on and subsequently re-leased eleven assisted living complexes.

Washington State Properties - On October 16, 1998, we accepted deeds in lieu of foreclosure on four long-term care properties in
Washington State. Simultaneously with the receipt of the deeds to the properties, we entered into a management contract with a public
nursing home chain operating a number of other properties in Washington. We have included the operating revenues and expenses of
these facilities in our operating results since October 1998. Commencing February 1, 2000, the management of these facilities has been
transferred to a subsidiary of NHC. In December 2000, one of the four facilities was closed. Although we have retained a local broker
to sell the properties, a satisfactory offer has yet to be received. Based on the SFAS 121 impairment analysis, we recorded an impair-
ment of $1,500,000 during 2001 and $2,446,000 during 2000. We believe that the carrying amount of these properties of $8,535,000
after the writedown is realizable.

During 2001, we received notice from the state of Washington of an environmental contamination issue caused by a former owner
with regard to one of the properties. We are currently working with the state to design a clean-up plan. We are unable to estimate the
ultimate costs or range of costs that will be required to meet the state’s clean-up requirements.

New England Properties - In the third quarter of 1999, we accepted deeds in lieu of foreclosure on the three nursing homes and one
retirement center in New Hampshire and four licensed nursing homes in Massachusetts. We retained an operating subsidiary of NHC
to manage the properties and we have included the operating revenues and expenses of these facilities in our operating results since
August 1999. During 2001, we sold the properties to a non-profit entity and provided 100% seller financing to close the sale. We are
accounting for this transaction under the deposit method in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 66, “Accounting for Sales of Real Estate”, (“SFAS 66”). Consistent with the deposit method, we have not recorded the
sale of the assets and continue to record the results of operations of these properties each period. Any future cash received from the
buyer will be reported as a deposit until the down payment and other criteria of SFAS 66 are met, at which time we will account for the
sale under the full accrual method. The new owner is aggressively seeking to refinance these properties. Management believes that the
carrying amount of these properties of $35,117,000 is realizable.

Kansas and Missouri Properties - In July 2001, we accepted deeds in lieu of foreclosure on nine nursing homes in Kansas and
Missouri and have recorded the operating revenues and expenses of these facilities since that date. NHC also has been engaged to man-
age these facilities. During 2001, prior to accepting deeds on these properties, we recorded a $4,000,000 writedown of our mortgage
note receivable from these properties. Management believes that the carrying amount of these properties of $19,593,000, after the
$4,000,000 writedown, is realizable.

Alterra Properties - In early 1998, we entered into a purchase-leaseback transaction with Alternative Living Centers, Inc., now
known as Alterra. The $41,000,000 transaction resulted in Alterra leasing eleven properties from us - four in Arizona, three in Florida,
three in Tennessee, and one in South Carolina. In March 2001, Alterra defaulted on their rent payment and we immediately terminat-
ed the leases and arranged for new lessees. The new lessees took possession of the centers during the late spring and summer of 2001.
We have filed suit for damages against Alterra. Under the terms of the new leases, we experienced reduced rental income in 2001 and
anticipate continued reduced rental income over 2002. Based on reduced rental payments that have been and are expected to be received
on these properties, and in accordance with SFAS 121, we have recorded an impairment of $4,900,000 during 2001. We believe that
the combined carrying amount of these properties of $33,406,000 after the writedown is realizable.

National Health Investors, Inc. Page 21




Performing Bankrupt Borrowers and Lessees

Integrated Health Services, Inc. (“1HS”) Loan Participation - THS filed bankruptcy in February 2000 and failed to make its required
mortgage payments to SouthTrust Bank on six Texas nursing homes. At that time, we owned a 50% participation in this loan with
SouthTrust Bank. Effective September 1, 2001, IHS deeded the six nursing homes to a subsidiary of NHI in return for the forgiveness
of the debt held jointly by SouthTrust Bank and us. We recorded these six nursing homes and certain non-recourse debt to SouthTrust
Bank at the estimated fair value of the properties of approximately $44,700,000. We lease the facilities to IHS under a 66-month lease
with minimum payments equal to approximately $3,078,000 per year plus additional rent based on cash flow of the facilities. We col-
lect these rent payments and service our debt to SouthTrust Bank, which debt service is substantially equal to the rent payments col-
lected. We and SouthTrust each beneficiaily own 50% of the lease revenue. Our interest in the lease revenue is represented by a note
receivable from SouthTrust Bank. We have a legal right of offset as it relates to the non-recourse debt and note receivable with
SouthTrust Bank. Therefore, the note receivable offsets the non-recourse debt in the consolidated balance sheet. During 2001, prior to
accepting the deeds to these properties, we recorded a $3,000,000 write-down of our note receivable. We believe that the carrying
amount of our net investment in these properties of approximately $19,100,000, after the $3,000,00C write-down, is realizable.

During 2001, prior to accepting the deeds to these properties, NHI recorded a $3,000,000 write-down of its note receivable. NHI
believes that the carrying amount of its net investment in these properties of approximately $19,100,000, after the $3,000,000 write-
down, is realizable.

IHS has the right to terminate its lease with us with 90 days notice. Lease payments commenced September 1, 2001 and are current.

Sun HealthCare - In the third quarter of 1999, SunRise HealthCare (“Sun™) filed for bankruptcy protection. We had three properties
which we leased to Sun. Sun rejected one of the leases effective January 31, 2001 and NHI re-leased the property to a third party for
approximately 82% of the previous rent payment by Sun. Under the new lease agreement, the third party has a purchase option of
$2,300,000. The other two properties are current in their lease payments, and the most recent Sun plan of reorganization provides for
their reaffirmation of the remaining two centers.

Mariner Health Care - Mariner (which entered bankruptcy in February 2000) has six properties in the 1993 REMIC collateral pool.
See Note 8. During 2000, NHI was informed by the master servicer of the REMIC that the Mariner properties were not making their
required debt service payments. NHI reduced the carrying value of its investment during 2000 by $2,446,080 to its current carrying
amount of approximately $30,000,000. Mariner has now recommenced its debt service payments to the 1993 REMIC and should
emerge from bankruptcy in 2002, reaffirming its debt obligation to the REMIC.

Loan, Realty and Security Loss

During 2001, we determined, based on events occurring during that year and based on the provisions of SFAS 114 and SFAS 121,
that impairments of certain of the investments mentioned above had occurred. As discussed above, these investments were affected by
bankruptcey filings, bankruptcy court rulings, non-receipt of payments and judgments about possible refinancing and other collateral val-
ues. It is possible that additional events could occur that would indicate a further impairment of the net carrying amount of our invest-
ments. If such events occur, we will record additional loan loss provisions and impairment losses in the periods such events are known.

At December 31, 2001, we determined that no allowance for loan losses was required. Loan loss provisions and property impair-
ments of $29,850,000 have been recorded during 2001 related tc five mortgage loans totaling $124,068,000 (before writedowns) and
two owned property groups totaling $55,161,000 (before writedowns). The remaining portion of the loan, realty and security loss of
$5,709,000 relates to the write-down in 2001 for the permanent decline in value of the investment in Assisted Living Concepts
Debentures.

Results of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2001 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2000

Net loss for the year ended December 31, 2001 is $.1 million versus $33.7 million net income for the same period in 2000. Diluted
earnings per common share decreased $1.39 to a loss of $.08 in 2001 from $1.31 in 2000.

Total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2001 decreased $8.3 million or 5.7% to $139.2 million from $147.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2000. Revenues from mortgage interest income decreased $12.3 million, or 32.6%, when compared to the
same period in 2000. Revenues from rental income decreased $1.5 million, or 3.2% in 2001 as compared to 2000. Revenues from
investment interest and other income decreased $6.7 million or 62.3% compared to 2000. Facility operating revenue increased $12.2
million to $63.5 million in 2001 compared to $51.3 million in 2000, a 23.9% increase.

The decrease in mortgage interest income is due to a decline in the average amount of mortgage investments outstanding as a result
of collection of and foreclosure on mortgage loans and due to the discontinuation of interest income recognition on the Autumn Hills,
two New Jersey facilities, and Manor House of Charlotte loans as discussed previously. During 200, NHI collected $31.7 million of
principal on mortgage loans. During 2001, NHI foreclosed on one mortgage loan which resulted in the acquisition of nine long-term
health care centers in Kansas and Missouri.

The decrease in rental income resulted primarily from the discontinuation of rental income recognition on Alterra real estate prop-
erties as discussed previously. The decrease in investment interest and other income is due primarily to the discontinuation of interest
income recognition on the Assisted Living Concepts (“ALC”) securities as a result of ALC filing for bankruptcy in 2001, combined
with the investment of lower cash amounts, and the sale of marketable securities, resulting in a $1.9 million realized loss. The $1.9 mil-
lion realized loss reduces investment interest and other income for the year 2001.
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The increase in facility operating revenues is due primarily to the purchase, in lieu of foreclosure of nine long-term health care cen-
ters in Kansas and Missouri during 2001.

Total expenses for 2001 increased $25.4 million or 22.4% to $139.2 million from $113.8 million for 2000. Interest expense decreased
$8.4 million or 29.6% in 2001 as compared to 2000, Depreciation of real estate increased $.5 million or 3.4% when compared to 2000.
General and administrative costs combined with amortization of loan costs, legal expense, and franchise and excise taxes decreased
$0.2 million or 3.8%. Loan realty and security loss expense increased $20.9 million to $35.6 million, a 141.8% increase. Facility oper-
ating expense increased $12.8 million to $62.8 million in 2001 compared to $50.0 million in 2000, a 25.6% increase.

Interest expense decreased due to the payment of credit facilities of $83.0 million, and payment of convertible debentures of $37.8
million, offset partially by new convertible debentures of $20.0 million before conversions to equity thereon of $13.8 million.
Depreciation increased as a result of the Company placing newly constructed assets in service, property acquisitions, and the purchase,
in lieu of foreclosure, of long term health care centers as discussed in Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Loan losses and realty impairments for 2001 were $29.9 million compared to $14.7 million for the same period in 2000. Realized
losses on marketable securities were $5.7 million for 2001. The combined non-cash charge of $35.6 million resulted in a decrease of
$1.45 per basic and diluted share in 2001. NHI also recorded a non-cash charge of $14.7 million, a decrease of .60 cents per basic and
diluted share, in 2000 because of impairments of mortgage loan values, foreclosures and lease terminations.

The increase in facility operating expense is due to the purchase, in lieu of foreclosure, of nine long-term health care centers in
Kansas and Missouri.

Year Ended December 31, 2000 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 1999

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2000 is $33.7 million versus $53.6 million for the same period in 1999, a decrease of
37.1%. Diluted earnings per common share decreased 82 cents or 38.7%, to $1.31 in 2000 from $2.13 in 1999.

Total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2000 increased $16.3 million or 12.5% to $147.5 million from $131.2 million for
the year ended December 31, 1999. Revenues from mortgage interest income decreased $11.2 million, or 22.7%, when compared to the
same period in 1999. Revenues from rental income increased $1.5 million, or 3.3% in 2000 as compared to 1999. Revenues from invest-
ment interest and other income decreased $1.0 million or 8.4% compared to 1999. Facility operating revenue increased to $51.3 mil-
lion in 2000 compared to $24.3 million in 1999.

The decrease in mortgage interest income is due to a decline in the average amount of mortgage investments outstanding as a result
of collection of and foreclosure on mortgage loans and due to the discontinuation of interest income recognition on other loans. During
2000, NHI collected $47.6 million of principal on mortgage loans. During 2000 and 1999, NHI foreclosed or received deeds in lieu of
foreclosure on mortgage loans totaling $82.8 million, which resulted in the acquisition of seven long-term health care centers and one
retirement center.

The increase in rental income resulted primarily from the increase in investments in real estate properties. The decrease in invest-
ment interest and other income is due to the disposal of $13.1 million in marketable securities in 2000.

The increase in facility operating revenues is also due primarily to the purchase, in lieu of foreclosure, of seven long-term health
care centers and one retirement center in August 1999.

Total expenses for 2000 increased $36.3 million or 46.8% to $113.8 million from $77.5 million for 1999. Interest expense increased
$2.9 million or 11.5% in 2000 as compared to 1999. Depreciation of real estate increased $2.7 million or 23.4% when compared to
1999. Legal expense increased $1.0 million. Franchise and excise tax increased $0.6 million. Loan loss expense increased $.9 million
or 6.6% to $14.7 million. Facility operating expense increased to $50.0 million in 2000 compared to $22.6 million in 1999,

Interest expense increased due to higher borrowing costs compared to the prior year. Depreciation increased as a result of the
Company placing newly constructed assets in service, property acquisitions, and the purchase, in lieu of foreclosure, of long term health
care centers as discussed in Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Legal expense increased due to foreclosure and financing activities. Franchise and excise tax expense increased because of the imple-
mentation of new state taxes.

NHI recorded a non-cash charge of $10.4 million, a decrease in net income per share of 43 cents in the fourth quarter of 2000 because
of the impairment of values related to mortgage loans and REMICs. NHI also recorded a non-cash charge of $10.0 million, a decrease
of 41 cents per basic and diluted share, in the fourth quarter of 1999 because of impairments of values related to mortgage loans, fore-
closures and lease terminations.

The increase in facility operating expense also is due to the purchase, in lieu of foreclosure, of long-term health care centers.

Funds From Operations

We have adopted the definition of Funds From Operations (“FFO”) prescribed by the National Association of Real Estate Investment
Trusts (“NAREIT”). FFO is defined as net income (loss) applicable to common stockholders (computed in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles “GAAP”) excluding gains (or losses) from sales of property, plus depreciation of real property and after
adjustments for unconsolidated entities in which a REIT holds an interest. FFO should not be considered as an alternative to net income
or any other GAAP measurement of performance as an indicator of operating performance or as an alternative to cash flows from oper-
ations, investing or financing activities as a measure of liquidity. FFO is helpful in evaluating a real estate investment portfolio’s over-
all performance considering the fact that historical cost accounting implicitly assumes that the value of real estate assets diminishes pre-
dictably over time
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mon stockholders:

Three Months Ended Year Ended

December 31 December 31
2001 2000 2001 2000
Net income (loss) applicable to common stockholders $ 4,871,000 $ 20,000 $(1,944,0003  $31,910,000
Real estate depreciation 4,060,000 3,803,000 14,658,000 14,172,000

Funds from operations applicable to common stockholders $ 8,931,000 $ 3,823,000 $12,714,000 $46,082,000

Diluted funds from operations applicable to common

stockholders $ 9,015,000 $ 3,823,000 $12,714,000 $46,082,000
Basic funds from operations per share ‘ $ 36 $ .16 $ 52 $ 1.89
Diluted funds from operations per share $ 33 $ .16 $ 52 $ 1.76
Shares for basic funds from operations per share 24,688,226 24,385,383 24,466,850 24,383,932
Shares for diluted funds from operations per share 26,917,896 24,385,383 24,466,850 26,222,284

Impact of Inflation

Inflation may affect us in the future by changing the underlying value of our real estate or by impacting our cost of financing its
operations.

Our revenues are primarily from long-term investments. Certain of our leases require increases in rental income based upon increas-
es in the revenues of the tenants. We have negotiated similar provisions in many of our mortgage notes receivable.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In December 1999, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101 (“SAB 101”) regarding rev-
enue recognition in financial statements. SAB 101 was effective January 1, 2000 but implementation was delayed until the fourth quar-
ter of 2000. Our implementation of SAB 101 in the fourth quarter did not have a material impact on our financial position, results of
operations or cash flows on a quarterly or annual basis.

From June 1998 through fune 2000, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“SFAS 133”) and various amendments and inter-
pretations. SFAS 133, as amended, establishes accounting and reporting standards requiring that any derivative instrument (including
a derivative embedded in a hybrid instrument) be recorded in the balance sheet as either an asset or liability and measured at its fair
value. SFAS 133, as amended, requires that changes in the derivative’s fair value be recognized currently in earnings unless specific
hedge accounting criteria are met. We adopted SFAS 133, as amended, effective January 1, 2001.

Our investments in marketable securities include debt securities convertible into common stock of the issuing company. SFAS 133
requires that we account for such debt securities as two separate instruments: a purchased call option on the issuer’s stock and a non-
convertible interest-bearing debt security. Because we are not using the purchased call options as hedging instruments, Statement 133
requires that we report changes in the fair value of the separated call options currently in earnings. In addition, we are required to accrete
the resulting discount on the nonconvertible debt securities into income over the remaining term of the nonconvertible debt securities.
At January 1, 2001, the fair value of the purchased call options, as determined using an option pricing model, was approximately
$5,000. As a result, the initial adoption of SFAS 133, as amended, did not have a material effect on our financial position, results of
operations or cash flows. Additionally, there were no material changes in the fair value of these purchased call options during 2001.
However, future changes in the fair value of the purchased call options could introduce significant volatility into our results of opera-
tions in future fiscal quarters.

Forward Looking Statements

Statements in this Report that are not historical facts are forward-looking statements that involve a number of known and unknown
risks and uncertainties. In addition to the factors discussed above, among the other factors that could cause our actual results, perform-
ance and achievements to differ materially from any future results, performance or achievements implied by such forward-looking
statements are the following: ability to reach agreement with certain creditors to extend maturity on terms we believe are reasonable
prior to due dates; receipts of sufficient cash flow to repay debt as it becomes due; ability to continue to meet REIT status; general
industry distress, including the on-going effect of reimbursement cutbacks; additional bankruptcy filings or other financial problems by
lessees, mortgagors or managers of healthcare facilities in which we have an interest; and the description of the risk factors mentioned
from time to time in the Company’s SEC reports. We caution investors that any forward-looking statements may involve risks and
uncertainties and are not guarantees of future performance. We have no duty to update information in this report. All forward looking
statements represent our judgments as of the date of this report.
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Interest Rate Risk

Our cash and cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments with a maturity of less than three months. All of our mortgage
and other notes receivable bear interest at fixed interest rates. Our investment in preferred stock represents an investment in the pre-
ferred stock of another real estate investment trust and bears interest at a fixed rate of 8.5%. The underlying mortgages included in our
investments in real estate mortgage investment conduits (REMICs) also bear interest at fixed interest rates. As a result of the short-term
nature of our cash instruments and because the interest rates on our investment in notes receivable, preferred stock and REMICs are
fixed, a change in interest rates has no impact on our future earnings and cash flows related to these instruments.

As of December 31, 2001, $134,120,000 of our long-term debt bears interest at fixed interest rates. As of December 31, 2001,
$56,491,000 of our convertible subordinated debentures bear interest at fixed rates. Because the majority of the interest rates of these
instruments are fixed, a hypothetical 10% change in interest rates has an immaterial impact on our future earnings and cash flows relat-
ed to these instruments. The remaining $30,344,000 of our long-term debt and $6,152,000 of our convertible subordinated debentures
bear interest at variable rates. A hypothetical 10% change in interest rates may have a material impact on our future earnings and cash
flows related to these instruments.

We do not use derivative instruments to hedge interest rate risks. The future use of such instruments will be subject to strict approvals
by our senior officers.

Equity Price Risk

We consider our investments in marketable securities as available for sale securities and unrealized gains and losses are recorded in
stockholders’ equity in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 115. The investments in marketable securi-
ties are recorded at their fair market value based on quoted market prices. Thus, there is exposure to equity price risk, which is the poten-
tial change in fair value due to a change in quoted market prices. Hypothetically, a 10% change in quoted market prices would result
in a related 10% change in the fair value of our investments in marketable securities. In addition, a hypothetical 10% change in the quot-
ed market prices of our subordinated convertible debentures would result in a related 10% change in the fair value of the debenture
instruments.

Item 8. Finamcial Statements and Supplementary Data
The following Consolidated Financial Statements are included as Exhibit 13 and are incorporated in this Item 8 by reference:

a. Report of Independent Public Accountants

b. Consolidated Balance Sheets

c¢. Consolidated Statements of Income

d. Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

e. Consolidated Statements of Stockhoiders’ Equity
f. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The following table sets forth selected quarterly financial data for the two most recent fiscal years.

Selected Quarterly Financial Data
(Unaudited, in thousands, except per share amounts)

ist 2nd 3rd 4th
2001 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Net Revenues $ 33,373 $ 33,438 $ 34,112 $ 38,248
Net Income (Loss) 9,889 (12,268) (2,974) 5,290
Basic Earnings (Loss) Per Share 390 (.528) (.140) 200
Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share 360 (.520) (.140) 180

1st 2nd 3rd 4th
2000 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Net Revenues $ 38,023 $ 37,999 $ 34,992 $ 36,500
Net Income 13,953 13,914 5,350 507
Basic Earnings Per Share .560 .550 .200 .000
Diluted Earnings Per Share .560 550 200 .000

[tem 9. Chamges in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Not Applicable
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Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of Registrant

Management

The following table sets forth our directors and executive officers. Each executive officer is elected by the directors, serves at the
pleasure of the Board of Directors and holds office until a successor is elected or until the earliest of resignation or removal. Directors
hold office until the annual meeting for the year in which their term expires and until their successor is elected and qualified. A direc-
tor may be removed from office for cause only.

Name Age Position with the Company Director Term Expires
W. Andrew Adams 56 Director and President 2002
Richard F. LaRoche, Jr. 56 Director, Senior Vice President and Secretary 2004
Robert T. Webb 57 Director 2003
Ted H. Welch 68 Director 2004
Robert G. Adams 55 Senior Vice President —_—
Robert A. McCabe, Jr. 51 Director 2002

W. Andrew Adams has been President and a director since its inception in 1991. Mr. Adams has also been President and a director
of National HealthCare Corporation (“NHC”), our Investment Advisor, since 1974. He also serves in these positions for National Health
Realty, Inc., since its spin-off in late 1997. Mr. Adams serves on the Board of Directors of Lipscomb University in Nashville, Tennessee,
SunTrust Bank in Nashville, Tennessee, Assisted Living Concepts, Inc. in Portland, Oregon, and Boy Scouts of America. He has an
M.B.A. from Middle Tennessee State University.

Richard F. LaRoche, Jr. has served as Vice President, Secretary and a director since its inception in 1991. Mr. LaRoche is also
General Counsel of NHC since 1971, Secretary of NHC since 1974 and Senior Vice President of NHC since 1986. He serves in the
same capacities for National Health Realty, Inc. He received a J.D. from Vanderbilt University and an A.B. from Dartmouth College.
Mr. LaRoche is responsible for legal affairs, acquisitions and finance for all three companies.

Robert T. Webb has served as a director of the Company since its inception in 1991. Mr. Webb is the owner of commercial build-
ings and rental properties in the Middle Tennessee area and is a subdivision developer. Mr. Webb is the President and the sole owner of
Webb’s Refreshments, Inc. which has been in operation serving the Middle Tennessee area since 1976. Mr. Webb attended David
Lipscomb College and received a B.A. in business marketing from Middle Tennessee State University in 1969.

Ted H. Welch has served as a director of the Company since its inception in 1991. Mr. Welch serves on the Board of Directors of
American Constructors, Inc., FirstBank, SSC Service Solutions, and U.S. Chamber of Commerce. Mr. Welch received a B.S. from the
University of Tennessee at Martin and attended the Graduate School of Management at Indiana University.

Robert A. McCabe, Jr. has served as director of the Company since February 2001. Mr. McCabe is currently Chairman of Pinnacle
Financial Partners in Nashville, Tennessee, but spent substantially all of his business life (March 1976-October 1999) as a senior offi-
cer of First American National Bank or its subsidiaries. His most recent positions were a Vice Chairman of the holding company and
President of First American Enterprises. Mr. McCabe received his M.B.A. from the University of Tennessee and graduated from the
Advanced Management Program of Harvard Business School. He serves on the Board of Directors of the Nashville Symphony,
Chamber of Commerce, Boy Scouts of America, Ensworth School, Cheekwood Association and SSC Service Solutions.

Robert G. Adams has served as Vice President since 1997. He is the brother of W. Andrew Adams. He is the Chief Operating Officer
of NHC and serves on the Board of Directors of NHC and National Health Realty, Inc. He is responsible for oversight of all company
due diligence reports and financial pro formas. He received a B.S. degree from Middle Tennessee State University.

The following employees of NHC have material involvement with the Company:

D. Gerald Coggin (Vice President/Governmental and Investor Relations) has a B.A. degree from David Lipscomb University and
an M.P.H. from the University of Tennessee.

Donald K. Damniel (Vice President and Controller) joined NHC in 1977 as Controller. He received a B.A. degree from Harding
University and an M.B.A. from the University of Texas. He is a certified public accountant.

Kenneth D. DenBesten (Vice President/Finance) has served as Vice President/ Finance since 1992. From 1987 to 1992, he was
employed by Physicians Health Care, most recently as Chief Operating Officer. From 1984 to 1986, he was employed by Health
America Corporation as Treasurer, Vice President of Finance and Chief Financial Officer. Mr. DenBesten received a B.S. in business
administration and an M.S. in Finance from the University of Arizona.

Charlotte A. Swafford (Treasurer) has been Treasurer of NHC since 1985. She joined NHC in 1973 and has served as Staff
Accountant, Accounting Supervisor and Assistant Treasurer. She has a B.S. degree from Tennessee Technological University.

Dinsie B. C. Hale (Assistant Vice President/Accounting) has been with NHC since 1985. She is responsible for billing and collec-
tion and functions as a senior accountant for NHI. She has a B.S. degree from Middle Tennessee State University.

Kristin S. Gaines (Credit Analyst) has been with NHC since 1998. She oversees portfolio compliance and reports on those issues
monthly to the NHC Advisory Committee and quarterly to the Board of Directors. She has a B.S. and an M.B.A. from Middle Tennessee
State University.

Page 26 National Health Investors, Inc.




ltem 11. Executive Compensation

Information about our Executive Officer and Board of Directors compensation, including stock option information, is set out in detail
in our definitive 2002 Proxy Statement which is accompanying this Annual Report on Form 10-K. This information is incorporated by
reference herein as though copied verbatim.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The following table sets forth certain information as to the number of shares of Common Stock of the Company beneficially owned
as of December 31, 2001 (a) by each person (including any “group” as that term is used in Section 13(d)(3) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) who is known to the Company to own beneficially 5% or more of the outstanding shares,
(b) by each director, and (c) by all executive officers and directors of the Company:

Names and Addresses Number of Shares Percentages of
of Beneficial Owners Beneficially Owned® Total Shares
W. Andrew Adams® 2,506,620 9.6%

801 Mooreland Lane
Murfreesboro, TN 37128

Richard F. LaRoche, Jr.(9® 523,568 2.0%
2103 Shannon Drive
Murfreesboro, TN 37129

Robert A. McCabe, Jr. 3,723 *
211 Commerce Street, Suite 300
Nashville, TN 37201

Robert T. Webb@® 166,860 *
149 MTCS Drive

Murfreesboro, TN 37129

Ted Welch® 66,727 *

611 Commerce, 29th Floor
Nashville, TN 37219

Robert G. Adams™® 389,655 1.5%
2217 Battleground Drive
Murfreesboro, TN 37129

All Executive Officers and Directors as a Group (6 persons) 3,657,995 14.1%

National Financial Services Corp. 1,562,944 6.0%
200 Liberty Street
New York, NY 10281

The Baupost Group, L.L.C. 2,447,686 9.4%
10 St. James Avenue, Suite 2000
Boston, MA 02116

*Less than 1%.

(DThe percentages shown are based on 26,004,318 shares of Common Stock outstanding on December 31, 2001 plus, as to each indi-
vidual and group listed, the number of shares of Common Stock deemed to be owned by such holder pursuant to Rule 13d-3 under the
Exchange Act as disclosed by Vickers Stock Research Corporation. This is ownership for SEC purposes and not for purposes of real
estate investment trust regulations.

@Includes 60,713 shares to Mr. W. A. Adams, 20,000 to Mr. R. Adams; 60,000 to Mr. Webb; 60,000 to Mr. Welch; and 20,000 to Mr.
LaRoche, all of which may be acquired upon the exercise of stock options granted under the Company’s 1991 and 1997 Stock Option
Plans.

®)Substantially all the options included in this total have been transferred to a family partnership or trust.
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limitations are designed to ensure that the Company maintains its status as a REIT. This limitation (as amended) states that no person
{as defined in the Code) may own directly or indirectly 9.9 percent or more of the Common Stock of the Company. Any shares of
Common Stock in excess of such limits are deemed to be “Excess Common Stock™. Excess Common Stock shall be deemed automat-
ically to have been converted into a class separate and distinct from the class from which converted and from any other class of Excess
Common Stock, each such class being designated “Excess Common Stock of [stockholder’s name]”. No Excess Common Stock may
be voted, nor considered outstanding for the purpose of determining a quorum at any meeting of stockholders. Any dividends or other
distributions payable upon the Excess Common Stock may, in the discretion of the Company, be paid into a non-interest bearing account
and released to the stockholder only at such time as he or she ceases to be the holder of Excess Common Stock. The Company, upon
authorization of the Board of Directors, may redeem any or all Excess Common Stock, and from the date of the giving of notice of
redemption such shares shall cease to be outstanding and the stockholder shall cease to be entitled to dividends, voting rights and other
benefits with respect to such shares. The redemption price will be based on the trading prices of the class of stock from which the Excess
Common Stock being redeemed were converted, and is payable, without interest, only upon the liquidation of the Company. However,
the Charter contains provisions under which the holder of Excess Common Stock may cause the Company to rescind such redemption
by selling (and notifying the Company of such sale), within 30 days after notice of the redemption, a number of the shares of Common
Stock held by such holder equal to the number of shares of Excess Common Stock. In addition, Excess Common Stock held by any
holder may be converted back into shares of Common Stock if the holder sells such shares prior to their being called for redemption.

Upon demand of the Company, each stockholder must disclose to the Company such information with respect to direct and indirect
ownership of stock owned (or deemed to be owned after applying the rules applicable to REITs under the Code) as the Board of
Directors deems reasonably necessary in order that the Company may fully comply with the REIT provisions of the Code. Proposed
transferees of stock must also satisfy the Board, upon demand, that such transferees will not cause the Company to fall out of compli-
ance with such provisions.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
Advisory, Administrative Services and Facilities Agreement

We entered into an Advisory, Administrative Services and Facilities Agreement with NHC as “Advisor” under which NHC provides
management and advisory services to us during the term of the Advisory Agreement. See “Business - Advisory, Administrative Services
and Facilities Agreement”.

Leases

Pursuant to NHC’s conveyance of certain of the Health Care Facilities to us, we lease to NHC 43 of the Health Care Facilities.
Pursuant to these Leases, we have entered into a Master Agreement to Lease with NHC. See “Business - NHC Master Agreement to
Lease”. At the expiration of the leases, any expansions to or improvements in the Health Care Facilities remain the full and complete
property of NHI. During 2000, four of the leases - all in Florida - were terminated and the property leased to third parties. Although
NHC’s total rent obligation to us was unchanged, it will receive credit for rent received by us on these four Florida centers.

The Mortgage Debt

In connection with NHC’s conveyance of 43 of the Health Care Facilities (the “NHC Health Care Facilities”) to the Company in
1991, we assumed mortgage debt of $120.4 million (the “NHC Mortgage Debt”). As of December 31, 2001, the aggregate principal
balance of the remaining mortgage debt was $48,676,000. If we were required to redeem all or a material portion of such debt, there
can be no assurance that we would be able to replace such debt on the same or similar terms or in a similar amount. NHC has agreed
to indemnify and hold us harmless from certain costs and damages incurred in refinancing or so redeeming this debt, including closing
or commitment fees, legal fees, and increased interest rates. The balance of the mortgage indebtedness encumbering the Health Care
Facilities received from NHC is long-term self-amortizing debt with final maturities from 1999 through 2017.

Although we assumed the NHC Mortgage Debt, NHC remains liable on certain of the debt and we have agreed to indemnify NHC
in respect of such continuing liability. In connection with the transfer of the NHC Health Care Facilities and the Notes to the Company,
and the assumption by us of the NHC Mortgage Debt, NHC and we obtained the written consent of each material lender of such
Mortgage Debt and of the Guaranteed Debt (defined below). In addition, we and NHC have covenanted with such lenders to maintain
certain debt coverage and similar financial ratios. Although there can be no assurance, management believes that we and NHC will be
able to comply with each such covenant, during all relevant periods. In the event, however, that we or NHC fails to comply with any
such covenant, and such failure is deemed to constitute a defauit under the related NHC Mortgage Debt or Guaranteed Debt, we may
be required to retire such NHC Mortgage Debt or Guaranteed Debt prior to its stated maturity. A default under such debt, if not waived
or cured, could result in a loss of certain of our assets through foreclosure or other means. NHC has agreed to indemnify and hold us
harmless from suffering any loss, liability or harm as a result of this cross-collateralization, regardless of the form of such loss, liabil-
ity or harm.

The majority of the NHC Mortgage Debt is cross-defaulted with other NHC liabilities and is cross-collateralized as mentioned above.
Thus, in the event NHC defaulted on its remaining obligations under its debt package, we could lose our interest in the Notes or the
NHC Health Care Facilities, even if its own payments on the NHC Mortgage Debt were current.
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The Guaranteed Debt

In order to obtain the consent of certain lenders of NHC’s transfer of assets to us, we guaranteed certain bank debt of National Health
Corporation, which NHC also guaranteed. Effective December 28, 2001, we were released by the banks as a guarantor on this debt. As
a result, we no longer have the risk that a default by NHC or National Health Corporation could trigger a cross default of us. We remain
liable on $16,017,000 of this debt to National Health Corporation and as a result, the debt continues to be shown as long term debt on
our balance sheet.

In order to obtain the consent of certain lenders to NHC’s transfer of assets to us, we guaranteed certain senior debt ($17,857,000
balance as of December 31, 2001) of unrelated parties which NHC and NHR also guaranteed. We were directly obligated on 42% of
this balance and a contingent obligor on 62% of this balance. Effective December 31, 2001, we, NHC and NHR were released as guar-
antors on this debt. As a result, we no longer have the risk that a default by NHC, NHR or the unrelated party mentioned above could
trigger a cross default of us. We remain liable on 42% of the debt to the unrelated party and reflects this amount as long term debt on
our balance sheet.

In management’s opinion, these guarantee fees approximate the guarantee fees that we would currently charge to enter into similar
guarantees.

Certain of the guaranteed indebtedness is secured by first mortgages, pledges of personalty, accounts receivable and, in certain
instances, by the guarantees of the owners of the facilities. The borrower has granted second mortgages over the relevant properties in
favor of NHC, and NHC has assigned its rights in such mortgages to NHI. Such rights may be enforced if either party is required to
pay under their respective guarantees. NHC has agreed to indemnify and hold harmless NHI against any and all loss, liability or harm
incurred by us as a result of having to perform under its guarantee of any or all of the guaranteed debt.

Operating Contracts

A subsidiary of NHC, our investment advisor, was retained by us in August 1999 to manage our eight New England properties. The
properties have now been resold with NHI providing purchase mortgage financing. Additionally, effective February 1, 2000, we have
transferred managerial control of four Washington state properties pursuant to an advisory agreement with another subsidiary of NHC.
Finally, in July 2001, we retained NHC to manage the nine Missouri and Kansas properties on which we have foreclosed. Details of
these properties can be found in the section entitled “Foreclosure Properties”. The operating advisory fee is, in our opinion, a market
rate contract.

Management Conflict of Interest

Two of the five directors and all of our officers occupy positions with NHC, and therefore, there may be conflicts of interest in their
duties to the NHC stockholders and NHI stockholders. Although our Directors believe the terms of the NHC leases and the Advisory
Agreement are fair and reasonable, not all of the terms of the leases or the Advisory Agreement may be fair and reasonable, nor may
all of the terms of the leases or the Advisory Agreement negotiated on an arm’s-length basis. We may purchase additional equity inter-
ests in real estate from, or make additional mortgage loans to NHC. Since NHC is our investment advisor, it has a conflict of interest
in determining the price to be paid by us for additional assets which may be purchased from NHC and the terms of any leases to be
entered into between us and NHC.

Security Counsel to NHC also represents us on certain security matters. In the course of such representation, circumstances may arise
in which NHC and the Company have conflicting interests, in which event separate counsel will be retained to represent one or both of
the parties.

Investment Advisor’s Conflict of Interest

Our Investment Advisor, NHC, is also serving as the Investment Advisor for National Health Realty, Inc. (“NHR”) a separate health
care real estate investment trust founded in December, 1997, by NHC. Although NHR is publicly traded on the American Stock
Exchange, its investment activities are restricted by the terms of NHC’s Advisory Agreement.

NHR’s Advisory Agreement provides that prior to the earlier to occur of (i) the termination, for any reason, of the Advisory
Agreement or (ii) NHC ceasing to be actively engaged as the investment advisor for NHI, NHR will not (without the prior approval of
NHI) transact business with any party, person, company or firm other than NHC. It is the intent of the foregoing restriction that NHR
will not be actively or passively engaged in the pursuit of additional investment opportunities, but rather will focus upon its capacities
as landlord and note holder of those certain assets conveyed to it upon its formation by NHC.
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We have implemented an option exercise loan guaranty program, the purpose of which is to facilitate Directors and key personnel
exercising options to purchase NHI common stock. Pursuant to Board of Directors’ resolution unanimously passed, each Director and
Key Employee to whom options to purchase NHI common shares have been granted is eligible to obtain an NHI guaranty of up to
$100,000 per year on loans made from commercial banking institutes, the proceeds of which are used to exercise NHI options. The
guarantee is structured as follows: Option holders must pledge to NHI 125% of the loan amount in publicly traded stock as addition-
al collateral for the guarantee; the option holder must personally guarantee the loan to the bank; the interest rate charged by the bank
and all expenses pertaining to the loan are to be borne by the Director or Employee and the maximum outstanding amount of loan guar-
antees is $5,000,000. Furthermore, this facility is to have a one year term and be renewable at the Board’s discretion. The table below
indicates the current amount of loans outstanding by Directors of NHI individually and by all designated NHC employees collectively
as of December 31, 2001.

Current Loan Maximum Loan Commercial Bank
Outstanding Outstanding Originating Loan
W. Andrew Adams $ -0- $ -0- —
Richard F. LaRoche, Jr. 100,000 100,000 SouthTrust Bank
Robert T. Webb -0- -0- —
Ted Welch -0- -0- —
Robert G. Adams -0- -0- SouthTrust Bank
NHC Employees 1,145,366 1,246,749 SouthTrust Bank
PART IV

Item 14. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES
(a) The following documents are filed as part of this Report:
1. Financial Statements

The Consolidated Financial Statements are included as Exhibit 13 and are filed as part of this report.

2. Financial Statement Schedules

The Financial Statement Schedules and Report of Independent Public Accountants on Financial Statement Schedules listed in the
Index to Financial Statements are filed as part of this Form 10-K.

3. Exhibits
Exhibits required as part of this report are listed in the Exhibit Index.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K. - None
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Murfreesboro, State of Tennessee, on the 6th
day of March, 2002.

NATIONAL HEALTH INVESTORS, INC.

BY: /s/ Richard F. LaRoche, Jr.
Richard F. LaRoche, Jr.
Secretary

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed on the dates indicated by the fol-
lowing persons in the capacities indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ W. Andrew Adams President & Director

W. Andrew Adams (Principal Executive Officer) March 6, 2002
/s/ Richard F LaRoche, Jr. Secretary and Director

Richard F. LaRoche, Ir. (Principal Financial Officer) March 6, 2002

/s/ Robert T. Webb
Robert T. Webb Director March 6, 2002

/s/ Ted H. Welch
Ted H. Welch Director March 6, 2002

s/ Robert A, McCabe, Jr.
Robert A. McCabe, Jr. Director March 6, 2002
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NATIONAL HEALTH INVESTCRS, INC.
FORM 10-K FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2001

EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit No. Description Page No. or Location
3.1 Articles of Incorporation Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Form S-11
Registration Statement No. 33-41863
32 Bylaws Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Form S-11
Registration Statement No. 33-41863
4.1 Form of Common Stock Certificate Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 39 to Form S-11
Registration Statement No. 33-41863
42 Form of Preferred Convertible Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 60 to Form S-3
Stock Certificate Registration Statement No. 33-72370
4.3 Form of Debenture due 2006 (10%) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 38 to Form S-11
Registration Statement No. 33-41863
44 Form of Indenture Governing Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Form S-4
the Debentures Registration Statement No. 33-41863
45 Form of Debenture due 2001 (7-3/4%) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Form S-3 k
Registration Statement No. 33-85398
4.6 Form of Debenture due 2006 (7%) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1 to Form S-3
Registration Statement No. 33-72370
4.7 First Supplemental Indenture Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7 to
Dated December 1.7, 1995 Form 10-K dated February 26, 1996
10 Materials Contracts Incorporated by reference from Exhibits 10.1 thru 10.9 to
Form S-4
Registration Statement No. 33-41863
10.12 1991 Stock Option Plan Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.12 to Form S-4
Registration No. 33-41863
1997 Stock Option Plan Incorporated by reference from the 1997 Proxy Statement
as filed
13 Report of Independent Public Accountants Filed Herewith
Consolidated Balance Sheets
Consolidated Statements of Income
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders” Equity
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements -
Financial Statement Schedules
23 Consent of Independent Public Accounts Filed Herewith
EXHIBIT 13

NATIONAL HEALTH INVESTORS, INC.
INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES

Financial Statements

Report of Independent Public Accountants
Consolidated Balance Sheets-December 31, 2001 and 2000

Consolidated Statements of Income-For the Years Ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows-For the Years Ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity-For the Years Ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Statements Schedules

Report of Independent Public Accountants on Consolidated Financial Statement Schedules

Schedule 11 Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
Schedule ITI Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation
Schedule IV Mortgage Loans on Real Estate

All other schedules are not submitted because they are not applicable or not required or because the required information is
included in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

The 2001 consolidated financial statements, together with the Report of Independent Public Accountants, listed in the above index
are filed herewith.
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NATIONAL HEALTH INVESTORS, INC.
Report of Independent Public Accountants
To National Health Investors, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of National Health Investors, Inc. (a Maryland corporation) and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity and cash flows
for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s manage-
ment. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstate-
ment. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of National
Health Investors, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for
the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

At Andbowwn S F

Nashville, Tennessee
January 28, 2002
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NATIONAL HEALT M AINYES TORS, INC. |
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
December 31 2001 2000
Assets
Real estate properties:
Land $ 34,054 $ 30,907
Buildings and improvements 371,095 315,777
Construction in progress 4,334 2,879
409,483 349,563
Less accumulated depreciation (86,217) (71,559)
Real estate properties, net 323,266 278,004
Mortgage and other notes receivable, net 222,459 316,355
Investment in preferred stock 38,132 38,132
Investments in real estate mortgage investment conduits 36,366 36,366
Cash and cash equivalents 13,603 47,249
Marketable securities 27,273 36,110
Accounts receivable 8,355 7,528
Deferred costs and other assets 3,176 4,233
Total Assets $ 672,630 $ 766,977
Liabilities
Long-term debt $ 164,464 $ 143,660
Credit facilities — 83,000
Convertible subordinated debentures 62,643 114,281
Accounts payable and other accrued expenses 24,930 14,711
Accrued interest 5,143 6,646
Dividends payable 11,762 —
Deferred income 5,955 7,270
Total Liabilities 274,837 369,568
Commitments and guarantees

Stockholders’ Equity
Cumulative convertible preferred stock, $.C1 par value;
10,000,000 shares authorized;
747,994 and 747,994 shares, respectively, issued and

outstanding; stated at liquidation preference of $25 per share 18,709 18,700
250,000 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2000; stated
at liquidation preference of $12 per share — 3,000

Common stock, $.01 par value; 40,000,000 shares authorized;
26,004,318 and 24,392,157 shares, respectively, issued and

outstanding 260 244
Capital in excess of par value 435,399 426,260
Cumulative net income 427,826 427,889
Cumulative dividends (477,890) (464,307)
Unrealized losses on marketable securities (6,562) (14,377)
Total Stockholders’ Equity 397,793 397,409
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $ 672,630 $ 766,977

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NATIONAL HEALTH INVESTORS, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Income
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31 2001 2000 1999
Revenues:
Mortgage interest income $ 25,545 $ 37,894 $ 49,049
Rental income 46,020 47,525 45,993
Investment interest and other income 4,081 10,818 11,810
Facility operating revenue 63,525 51,277 24,306
139,171 147,514 131,158
Expenses:
Interest expense 26,100 28,539 25,596
Depreciation of real estate 14,658 14,172 11,485
Amortization of loan costs 1,088 1,165 743
Legal expense 1,453 1,011 12
Franchise and excise taxes 256 705 93
General and administrative expenses 3,302 3,462 3,170
Loan, realty & security losses 35,559 14,707 13,800
Facility operating expenses 62,818 50,029 22,641
139,234 113,790 77,540
Net income (loss) (63) 33,724 53,618
Dividends to preferred stockholders 1,881 1,814 1,633
Net income (Joss) applicable to common stock $ (1,9449) $ 31,910 $ 51,985
Net income (loss) per common share:
Basic $ (.08) $ 1.31 $ 2.13
Diluted (.08) 1.31 2.13
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic 24,466,850 24,383,932 24,365,027
Diluted 24,466,850 24,564,873 24,367,529

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock

Shares Amount Shares Amount
At $25 per share At $12 per share
Balance at 12/31/98 768,894 $ 19,222 — $ —

Net income — —_— —_— —
Unrealized losses on marketable securities, net — —_ — —
Total comprehensive income
Shares issued in conversion of

convertible debentures to common stock — — — —
Shares issued in conversion of

preferred stock to common stock (20,200) (505) — —
Dividends to common shareholders ($2.96 per share) — —_ — —
Dividends to preferred shareholders ($2.125 per share) — — — —

Balance at 12/31/99 748,694 18,717 — —

Net income — — — _—
Unrealized gains on marketable securities, net — — — —
Total comprehensive income
Shares sold — — 250,000 3,000
Shares issued in conversion of

convertible debentures to common stock —_— — — —
Shares issued in conversion of

preferred stock to common stock (700) an — —
Dividends to common shareholders ($1.28 per share) — — — —
Dividends to preferred shareholders — — — —

Balance at 12/31/00 747,994 18,700 250,000 --3,000

Net loss — — — —
Unrealized gains on marketable securities, net — — — —
Total comprehensive income
Shares sold — —_ — —
Shares repurchased — —_ (250,000) (3,000)
Shares issued in conversion of convertible

debentures to common stock — —_ — -
Dividends to common shareholders (3$.45 per share) — — — —
Dividends to preferred shareholders — — — —

Balance at 12/31/01 747,994 $ 18,700 — $ —

N O S O N O P T Spy

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Capital in Unrealized Losses Total
Common Stock Excess of Cumulative Cumulative on Marketable Stockholders’
Shares Amount Par Value Net Income Dividends Securities Equity
24,364,391 $ 244 $ 425,449 $ 340,547 $ (357,518) $ (3.284) $ 424,660
—_ — — 53,618 — — 53,618
— — — — — (11,883) (11.883)
41,735
316 — 9 — — — 9
18,280 —_ 505 —_ — — —
_ _ —_ — (72,131) — (72,131)
—_ — — — (1,633) — (1,633)
24,382,987 244 425,963 394,165 (431,282) (15,167) 392,640
— — — 33,724 — — 33,724
— — — — — 790 790
34,514
— — — — — — 3,000
8,537 — 280 — — — 280
633 — 17 — — — —
— — —_ — (31,211) — (31,211
— — — — (1,814) — (1,814)
24,392,157 244 426,260 427,889 (464,307) (14,377) 397,409
— — — (63) — — 63)
— — — — — 7.875 1.875
7,812
15,000 — 149 — — — 149
(381,077) 4) (4,914) — — — (7,918)
1,978,238 20 13,904 - — — 13,924
— — — — (11,702) — (11,702)
— — — — (1,881) — (1,881)
26,004,318 $ 260 $ 435,399 $ 427,826 $ (477,890) $ (6,502) $ 397,793
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31 2001 2000 1999
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss) $ (63) $ 33,724 $ 53,618
Depreciation of real estate 14,658 14,172 11,485
Provision for loan, realty and security losses 35,559 14,707 13,800
Realized loss on sale of marketable securities 1,922 —_ —_
Amortization of loan costs 1,088 1,165 743
Interest on debenture conversions 135 10 —
Deferred income received —_ 68 1,095
Amortization of bond discount 23) — —
Amortization of deferred income (1,315) (939) (1,668) .
Amortization of discount on investments — (2,727) (1,563) !
Increase in accounts receivable (827) (220) (8,382)
Increase in deferred costs and other assets (221 2,217 (L17DH
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 8,850 5,867 5,482
Net cash provided by operating activities 59,763 63,610 73,433
Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment in mortgage notes receivable (5,818) (28,344) (22,163)
Collection of mortgage notes receivable 5,352 43,588 16,287
Prepayment of mortgage notes receivable 26,349 4,027 —
Acquisition of and construction of real estate properties, net (1,941) (3,202) (14,318)
(Investment in) sale of marketable securities, net 17,922 13,115 (33,173)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities: 41,864 29,184 (53,367)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Payments on credit facilities (83,000) (23,545) —
Proceeds from credit facilities — — 29,500
Proceeds from long-term debt 9,630 823 25,773
Payments on long-term debt (14,464) (11,488) (4,462)
Proceeds from (payments on) convertible subordinated debentures (37,790) 20,000 (800)
Dividends paid to stockholders (1,381) (51,058) (73,761)
Sale (repurchase) of cumulative convertible preferred stock (3,000) 3,000 —
Repurchase of common stock (4,768) —_ —_
Net cash used in financing activities (135,273) (62,268) (23,750)
Increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (33,646) 30,526 (3,684)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 47,249 16,723 20,407
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 13,603 $ 47,249 $ 16,723

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NATIONAL HEALTH INVESTORS, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Finamcial Statememnts
Years Ended December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999

Note 1. Organization

National Health Investors, Inc. (“NHI” or the “Company”) is a Maryland real estate investment trust (“REIT”) that was incorporat-
ed on July 24, 1991. NHI’s revenue is derived from interest income on mortgage loans, from rent generated on leased properties and
from the operations of long-term health care facilities on which NHI has foreclosed or has accepted deeds in lieu of foreclosure. NHI
invests in health care properties including long-term care centers, acute care hospitals, medical office buildings, assisted living facili-
ties and retirement centers. These properties are located throughout the United States and are operated by qualified health care
providers.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation - The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of NHI and its wholly-owned subsidiaries.
Significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with aceounting principles generally accepted in the United
States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expens-
es during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Real Estate Properties - NHI records properties at cost, including capitalized interest during construction periods. NHI uses the
straight-line method of depreciation for buildings and improvements over their estimated remaining useful lives of up to 40 years.

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of” (“SFAS 1217), NHI evaluates the recoverability of the carrying values of its properties
on a property by property basis. On a quarterly basis, NHI reviews its properties for recoverability when events or circumstances,
including significant physical changes in the property, significant adverse changes in general economic conditions, and significant dete-
riorations of the underlying cash flows of the property, indicate that the carrying amount of the property may not be recoverable. The
need to recognize an impairment is based on estimated future cash flows from a property compared to the carrying value of that prop-
erty. If recognition of an impairment is necessary, it is measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the property exceeds
the fair value of the property.

Allowance for Loan Losses - The allowance for loan losses is considered adequate to cover potential losses on NHI’s mortgage and
other notes receivable. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 114, “Accounting by Creditors for
Impairment of a Loan - An Amendment of FASB Statements No. 5 and 15,” the allowance is determined on a specific loan basis and
is based on an evaluation of the estimated collectibility of loan payments and general economic conditions.

Cash Equivalents - Cash equivalents consist of all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

Federal Income Taxes - NHI intends at all times to qualify as a REIT under Sections 856 through 860 of the Internal Revenue Code
of 1986, as amended. Therefore, NHI will not be subject to federal income tax provided it distributes at least 90% of its REIT taxable
income to its stockholders and meets other requirements to continue to qualify as a real estate investment trust. Accordingly, no provi-
sion for federal income taxes has been made in the consolidated financial statements. NHI’s failure to continue to qualify under the
applicable REIT qualification rules and regulations would have a material adverse impact on the financial position, results of opera-
tions and cash flows of NHI.

The primary difference between NHI’s tax basis and the reported amounts of NHI's assets and liabilities is a higher tax basis than
book basis in its real estate properties by approximately $26,116,000.

Earnings and profits, which determine the taxability of dividends to stockholders, differ from net income reported for financial
reporting purposes due primarily to differences in the basis of assets, differences in recognition of commitment fees, differences in the
estimated useful lives used to compute depreciation expense and differences in the treatment of accrued interest expense that existed at
the time debentures were converted to common stock.

Concentration of Credit Risks - NHI’s credit risks primarily relate to cash and cash equivalents, to the investments in real estate mort-
gage investment conduits and to mortgage and other notes receivable. Cash and cash equivalents are primarily held in bank accounts
and overnight investments. The investments in real estate mortgage investment conduits relate to a participating interest in two real
estate mortgage investment conduits as discussed in Note 8. Mortgage and other notes receivable relate primarily to secured loans with
health care facilities as discussed in Note 4.

NHI’s financial instruments, principally its investments in the real estate mortgage investment conduits and notes receivable, are sub-
ject to the possibility of loss of the carrying values as a result of either the failure of other parties to perform according to their con-
tractual obligations or changes in market prices which may make the instruments less valuable. NHI obtains various collateral and other
protective rights, and continually monitors these rights in order to reduce such possibilities of loss. NHI evaluates the need to provide
for reserves for potential losses on its financial instruments based on management’s periodic review of its portfolio on an instrument by
instrument basis. See Notes 4 and 8 for additional information on the notes receivable and real estate mortgage investment conduits.
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rities. Unrealized gains and losses on available for sale securities are recorded in stockholders’ equity in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities” (“SFAS 1157).

Deferred Costs - Costs incurred to acquire financings are amortized by the interest method over the term of the related debt.

Other Assets - Other assets include NHI's $242,000 investment in Summerfield Development LLC (“Summerfield”), a real estate
development company. Summerfield is a related party of NHI, since certain members of NHI’s management and Board of Directors are
also members of Summerfield. NHI carries its investment in Summerfield at cost in the consolidated balance sheets.

Deferred Income - Deferred income primarily includes non-refundable loan commitment fees received by NHI, which are amortized
into income by the interest method over the expected period of the related loans. In the event that a potential borrower chooses not to
borrow funds from NHI, the related commitment fees are recognized into income when the commitment expires.

In management’s opinion, these loan commitment fees approximate the loan commitment fees that NHI would currently charge to
enter into similar agreements based on the terms of the agreements and the creditworthiness of the parties, and the committed interest
rates are approximately the same as current levels of interest rates.

Rental Income - Rental income is recognized by NHI based on the terms of NHI’s leases. Under certain of its leases, NHI receives
additional contingent rent, which is based on the increase in revenues of a lessee over a base year or base quarter. NHI recognizes con-
tingent rent annually or quarterly, as applicable, when, based on the actual revenues of the lessee, receipt of such income is assured.
The Company’s policy related to rental income on non-performing leased real estate properties is to recognize rental income in the peri-
od when payments are made.

Mortgage Interest Income - Mortgage interest income is recognized by NHI based on the interest rates and principal amounts out-
standing of the mortgage notes receivable. Under certain of its mortgages, NHI receives additional contingent interest, which is based
on the increase in the current year revenues of a borrower over a base year. NHI recognizes contingent interest income annually when,
based on the actual revenues of the borrower, receipt of such income is assured. Mortgage interest income includes prepayment penal-
ties, which are recognized into income upon prepayment of notes receivable. The Company’s policy related to mortgage interest income
on nonperforming mortgage loans is to recognize mortgage interest income in the period when payments are made.

Investment interest and other income - Investment interest and other income includes dividends and interest received from invest-
ments in marketable securities, realized gains and losses on sales of marketable securities, interest on cash and cash equivalents and
amortization of deferred income.

Facility Operating Revenue - Facility operating revenue is generated from the long-term health care facilities on which NHI has fore-
closed or has accepted deeds in lieu of foreclosure or otherwise has obtained possession. With certain elections, unqualified income
generated by these foreclosure properties is expected to be treated as qualified income for up to six years from the purchase date for
purpose of the income-source tests that must be satisfied by REITs to maintain their tax status. NHI has engaged subsidiaries of National
HealthCare Corporation (“NHC”) to manage these foreclosure properties. Approximately 75% of NHI's facility operating revenue in
2001, 2000 and 1999 is derived from participation in Medicare and Medicaid programs. Amounts paid under these programs are gen-
erally based on fixed rates subject to program cost ceilings. Facility operating revenues is recorded at standard billing rates less
allowances and discounts principally for patients covered by Medicare, Medicaid and other contractual programs. These allowances and
discounts were $1,986,000, $15,454,000 and $3,339,000 in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Amounts earned under Medicare,
Medicaid and other governmental programs are subject to review by the third party payors. In the opinion of management, adequate
provision has been made for any adjustments that may result from such reviews. Any differences between estimated settlements and
final determinations are reflected in facility operating revenue in the year finalized.

Foreclosures - NHI records the assets received and liabilities assumed during foreclosures at the estimated fair value in accordance
with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 15, “Accounting by Debtors and Creditors for Troubled Debt
Restructurings.”

Stock-Based Compensation — NHI accounts for stock-based compensation arrangements under the provisions of Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 25”) and related interpretations. NHI has adopt-
ed the disclosure-only provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation” (“SFAS 123”). As a result, no compensation cost has been recognized in the consolidated statements of income for
NHTY’s stock option plan. See Note 14 for additional disclosures about NHI's stock option plan.

Comprehensive Income - Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income” requires that
changes in the amounts of certain items, including gains and losses on certain securities, be shown in the consolidated financial state-
ments. NHI reports its comprehensive income in the consolidated statements of stockholders’ equity.

New Accounting Pronouncements - In December 1999, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin
No. 101 (“SAB 101”) regarding revenue recognition in financial statements. SAB 101 was effective January 1, 2000 but implementa-
tion was delayed until the fourth quarter of 2000. NHI’s implementation of SAB 101 in the fourth quarter of 2000 did not have a mate-
rial impact on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows on a quarterly or annual basis.
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From June 1998 through June 2000, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) 1ssued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“SFAS 133”) and various amendments and inter-
pretations. SFAS 133, as amended, establishes accounting and reporting standards requiring that any derivative instrument (including
a derivative embedded in a hybrid instrument) be recorded in the balance sheet as either an asset or liability and measured at its fair
value. SFAS 133, as amended, requires that changes in the derivative’s fair value be recognized currently in earnings unless specific
hedge accounting criteria are met. NHI adopted SFAS 133, as amended, effective January 1, 2001.

NHI’s investments in marketable securities include debt securities convertible into common stock of the issuing company. SFAS 133
requires that NHI account for such debt securities as two separate instruments: a purchased call option on the issuer’s stock and a non-
convertible interest-bearing debt security. Because NHI is not using the purchased call options as hedging instruments, SFAS 133
requires that NHI report changes in the fair value of the separated call options currently in earnings. In addition, NHI is required to
accrete the resulting discount on the nonconvertible debt securities into income over the remaining term of the nonconvertible debt secu-
rities. At January 1, 2001, the fair value of the purchased call options, as determined using an option pricing model, was approximate-
ly $5,000. As a result, the initial adoption of SFAS 133, as amended, did not have a material effect on NHI’s financial position, results
of operations or cash flows. Additionally, there were no material changes in the fair value of these purchased call options during 2001.
However, future changes in the fair value of the purchased call options could introduce significant volatility into NHI’s results of oper-
ations in future fiscal quarters.

During August 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (SFAS 144). SFAS 144 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001 and supersedes
certain existing accounting literature, which literature NHI currently uses to evaluate the recoverability of its real estate properties. NHI
will adopt the provisions of SFAS 144 effective January 1, 2002. NHI does not believe that adoption of SFAS 144 will have a materi-
al effect on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In December 2001, the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants issued Statement of Position 01-6, “Accounting by
Certain Entities (including Entities with Trade Receivables) That Lend to or Finance the Activities of Others” (SOP 01-6). SOP 01-6 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001, and we will adopt the provisions of SOP 01-6 effective January 1, 2002.
We are currently evaluating the effects of SOP 01-6 but do not except such adoption to have a material effect on our financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.

Prior Year Reclassifications - Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2000 and 1999 consolidated financial statements to
conform to the 2001 presentation.
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The following table summarizes NHI’s real estate properties by type of facility and by state as of December 31, 2001:

(Dollar amounts in thousands)

Buildings,
Improvements & Mortgage
Number of Construction in Accumulated Notes
Facility Type and State Facilities Land Progress Depreciation Payable
Long-Term Care:
Alabama 2 $ 95 $ 5,165 $ 2,316 $ 373
Arizona 1 453 6,678 894 2,520
Florida 5 2,540 38,726 12,115 7,419
Georgia 1 52 865 582 119
Idaho 1 122 2,491 373 —
Kansas 5 354 8,493 117 -—_
Kentucky 3 201 2,899 1,506 —
Massachusetts 4 1,189 16,460 3,367 —
Missouri 9 2,091 31,155 8,917 12,386
New Hampshire 3 1,483 21,085 4,246 —
South Carolina 3 572 11,544 5,432 4,417
Tennessee 21 2,110 45,299 18,897 8,385
Texas 6 1,980 42,709 724 —
Virginia 1 176 2,511 1,026 3,270
Washington 4 1,982 8,371 1,818 —
Total Long-Term Care 69 15,400 244,451 62,330 38,889
Acute Care:
Kentucky 1 540 10,162 1,933 —
Total Acute Care 1 540 10,162 1,933 —
Medical Office Buildings:
Florida 1 170 3,349 1,055 —
Illinois 1 — 1,925 181 —
Kentucky 1 22 3,667 1,099 —
Louisiana 1 — 3,487 1,208 —
Texas 2 631 9,677 2,144 —
Utah 1 223 6,886 2,340 —
Total Medical Office
Buildings 7 1,046 28,991 8,027 —
Assisted Living:
! Arizona 4 1,757 13,622 992 —
Florida 5 7,096 28,144 4,375 —
New Jersey 1 4,229 13,030 2,284 —
i South Carolina 1 344 2,877 213 -—
] Tennessee 3 874 7,061 506 —_
' Texas 1 2,094 9,091 1,518 —
1 Total Assisted Living 15 16,394 73,825 9,888 —
i Retirement Centers:
Idaho 1 243 4,182 598 —
‘ Missouri 1 149 5,270 1,192 —
- New Hampshire 1 218 2,904 609 —
Tennessee 2 64 5,644 1,640 —
Total Retirement Centers 5 674 18,000 4,039 —
Total 97 $ 34,054 $ 375,429 $ 86,217 $ 38,889

Certain of NHI’s real estate properties are pledged as collateral on individual mortgage notes payable, as noted in the table above.

For the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, NHI capitalized interest costs during construction periods of $222,000,
$191,000, and $58,000, respectively.
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Foreclosure and Other Troubled Properties

NHI is treating the Washington State, New England and Kansas and Missouri properties described below as foreclosure property for
federal income tax purposes. With certain elections, unqualified income generated by the properties is expected to be treated as guali-
fied income for up to six years from the purchase date for purpose of the income-source tests that must be satisfied by REITs to main-
tain their tax status.

Washington State Properties - On October 16, 1998, NHI accepted deeds in lieu of foreclosure on four long-term care properties in
Washington State. Simultaneously with the receipt of the deeds to the properties, NHI entered into a management contract with a pub-
lic nursing home chain operating a number of other properties in Washington. NHI has included the operating revenues and expenses
of these facilities in our operating results since October 1998. Commencing February 1, 2000, the management of these facilities has
been transferred to a subsidiary of NHC. In December 2000, one of the four facilities was closed. Although NHI has retained a local
broker to sell the properties, a satisfactory offer has yet to be received. Based on its SFAS 121 impairment analysis, NHI recorded an
impairment of $1,500,000 during 2001 and $2,446,000 during 2000. Management believes that the carrying amount of these properties
of $8,535,000, after the above writedowns, is realizable.

During 2001, NHI received notice from the state of Washington of an environmental contamination issue caused by a former owner
with regard to one of the properties. NHI is currently working with the state to design a clean-up plan. NHI is unable to estimate the
ultimate costs or range of costs that will be required to meet the state’s clean-up requirements.

New England Properties - In the third quarter of 1999, NHI accepted deeds in lieu of foreclosure, recorded at approximately
$41,800,000, on the three nursing homes and one retirement center in New Hampshire and four licensed nursing homes in
Massachusetts. NHI retained an operating subsidiary of NHC to manage the properties and has included the operating revenues and
expenses of these facilities in our operating results since August 1999. During 2001, NHI sold the properties to a non-profit entity and
provided 100% seller financing to close the sale. NHI accounts for this transaction under the deposit method in accordance with the
provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 66, “Accounting for Sales of Real Estate™ (“SFAS 66”). Consistent with
the deposit method, NHI has not recorded the sale of the assets and continues to record the results of operations of these properties each
period. As of December 31, 2001, NHI has received no cash from the buyer. Any future cash received from the buyer will be reported
as a deposit until the down payment and other criteria of SFAS 66 are met, at which time NHI will account for the sale under the full
accrual method. The new owner is aggressively seeking to refinance these properties. Management believes that the carrying amount
of these properties of $35,117,000 is realizable.

Kansas and Missouri Properties - In July 2001, NHI accepted deeds in lieu of foreclosure on nine nursing homes in Kansas and
Missouri and has recorded the operating revenues and expenses of these facilities since that date. NHC also has been engaged to man-
age these facilities. During 2001, prior to accepting deeds on these properties, NHI recorded a $4,000,000 writedown of its mortgage
note receivable from these properties. Management believes that the carrying amount of these properties of $19,593,000, after the
$4,000,000 writedown, is realizable.

Alterra Properties - In early 1998 NHI entered into a purchase-leaseback transaction with Alternative Living Centers, Inc., now
known as Alterra. The $41,000,000 transaction resulted in Alterra leasing eleven properties from NHI - four in Arizona, three in Florida,
three in Tennessee, and one in South Carolina. In March 2001, Alterra defaulted on their rent payment and NHI immediately termi-
nated the leases and arranged for new lessees. The new lessees took possession of the centers during the late spring and summer of
2001. NHI has filed suit for damages against Alterra. Under the terms of the new leases, NHI experienced reduced rental income in
2001 and anticipates continued reduced rental income over 2002. Based on reduced rental payments that have been and are expected
to be received on these properties, and in accordance with SFAS 121, NHI has recorded an impairment of $4,900,000 during 2001. NHI
believes that the carrying amount of these properties of $33,406,000, after the writedown, is realizable.

Integrated Heaqlth Services, Inc. {(“IHS”) Loan Participation - IHS filed bankruptcy in February 2000 and failed to make its required
mortgage payments to SouthTrust Bank on six Texas nursing homes. At that time, NHI owned a 50% participation in this loan with
SouthTrust Bank. Effective September 1, 2001, IHS deeded the six nursing homes to a subsidiary of NHI in return for the forgiveness
of the debt held jointly by SouthTrust Bank and NHI. NHI recorded these six nursing homes and certain non-recourse debt to SouthTrust
Bank at the estimated fair value of the properties of approximately $44,700,000. NHI leases the facilities to THS under a 66-month lease
with minimum payments equal to approximately $3,078,000 per year plus additional rent based on cash flow of the facilities. NHI col-
lects these rent payments and services its debt to SouthTrust Bank, which debt service is substantially equal to the rent payments col-
lected. Through a separate participation agreement, NHI and SouthTrust each beneficially own 50% of the lease revenue. NHI's inter-
est in the lease revenue is represented by a note receivable from SouthTrust Bank, NHI has a legal right of offset as it relates to the non-
recourse debt and note receivable with SouthTrust Bank. Therefore, the note receivable offsets the non-recourse debt in the consoli-
dated balance sheet. During 2001, prior to accepting the deeds to these properties, NHI recorded a $3,000,000 write-down of its note
receivable. NHI believes that the carrying amount of its net investment in these properties of approximately $19,100,000, after the
$3,000,000 write-down, is realizable.

THS has the right to terminate its lease with NHI with 90 days notice. Lease payments commenced September 1, 2001 and are current.

National Health Investors, Inc. Page 43




4 SRR Mde AV AL \Lsﬂs\; Gualnid W Llield LNWRNAY AR ¥ Gy ot

The following is a summary of mortgage and other notes receivable by type:

December 31

2001 2000
Mortgage loans $ 219,104,000 $ 309,435,000
Construction loan — 6,125,000
Term loans 3,355,000 3,449,000
222,459,000 319,009,000

Loan loss allowance — (2,654,000)
$ 222,459,000 $ 316,355,000

The following is a summary of the terms and amounts of mortgage and other notes receivable at December 31, 2001:

Final Number of
Payment Date Loans

Payment Terms

Principal
Amount
(in thousands)

Mortgage Loans:
2002 1

2003 1
2005 1

2006 1
2007 1
2007 1
2009 1
2009 1

2010 1

2002-2010 20

Term Loans:
2019 3

Monthly payments of $353,000, which include interest at 11.5%
Balloon payment due at maturity.

Monthly payments of $98,000, which include interest at 11%.
Contingent interest related to the increase in certain lease
payments of the facilities over a base year is paid annually.
Balloon payment due at maturity.

Monthly payments of $101,000, which include interest at 11.85%.

The interest rate escalates annually by .1%. Contingent interest

related to a percentage of the facilities’ annual increase in revenue
over a base year is due annually. Balloon payment due at maturity.

Monthly payments of $225,000, which include interest at 10.95%,
adjusted annually to include principal and interest at a rate equal to

.15% above the previous year’s rate. Balloon payment due at maturity.

Monthly payments of $628,000, which include interest at
10.5%. Contingent interest related to a percentage of the
facilities’ annual increase in revenue over a base year is due
annually. Balloon payment due at maturity.

Monthly payments of $91,000, which include interest at 10.5%.
Contingent interest related to a percentage of the facilities’
annual increase in revenue over a base year is due annually.
Balloon payment due at maturity.

Monthly payments of $135,000, which include interest at 9.5%.
Contingent interest related to a percentage of the facilities’
annual increase in revenue over a base year is due annually.
Balloon payment due at maturity.

Monthly payments of $187,000, which include interest at
10.25%. Balloon payment due at maturity.

Monthly payments of $184,000, which include interest at
11.85%. The interest rate will escalate .1% per year through
September 1, 2005, the anniversary date of the note. Effective
September 1, 2005, the monthly payment will be adjusted to
include interest at the greater of 12.25% or the rate that five-
year United States securities yield plus 4.5%.

Monthly payments from $3,000 to $77,000, which include
interest at 7.75% to 11.7%. Principal outstanding ranges from
$320,000 to $7,648,000. Balloon payments due at maturity.

Monthly payments of $29,000, which include interest at 7.5%

$ 25,055,000

9,018,000

8,241,000

19,056,000

31,197,000

8,753,000

14,751,000

13,069,000

11,968,000

77,996,000

3,355,000

$222,459,000
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The mortgage notes receivable are generally first mortgage notes secured by the real estate of long-term health care centers, med-
ical office buildings, assisted living facilities and retirement centers in the states of Alabama, Arizona, Colorado, Florida, Georgia,
Kansas, Louisiana, Maryland, Missouri, New Jersey, North Carolina, Oklahoma, Pennsylvania, Tennessee, Texas, Virginia, and
Wisconsin.

The mortgage notes receivable are secured by first mortgages on the real property and UCC liens on the personal property of the
facilities. Certain of the notes receivable are also secured by guarantees of significant parties and by cross-collateralization on proper-
ties with the same respective owner.

Sale of Previously Foreclosed Properties

Stockbridge Investment Partners, Inc. Properties -On December 30, 1999, NHI purchased from the borrowers for approximately
$25,900,000 (the then current loan balance) all of the real estate, property and equipment of six long-term health care facilities in
Florida. NHI also received on December 30, 1999, the accounts receivable of the facilities approximating $2,200,000 as consideration
for unpaid interest on the mortgage loan. The purchase was undertaken in lieu of foreclosure. Effective January 1, 2000, NHI sold to
Care Foundation of America, Inc. (“Care”) all of the real estate, property and equipment of the six long-term health care facilities. The
sale price was $25,900,000, which was NHI’s basis in the properties. Care assumed the first mortgage which had previously been owed
by the properties. In accordance with the provisions of SFAS 66, NHI has accounted for this sale under the installment method. The
note receivable from Care bears interest at 11.5% and is collateralized by the first mortgages on the six long-term health care facilities
and the corporate guarantee of NHC for up to $3,000,000 of principal and interest. During 2001 and 2000, NHI recognized $2,562,000
and $2,615,000, respectively, of mortgage interest income on this note receivable under the installment method.

Borrower Bankruptcy and Other Non-Performing Loans

Autumn Hills Convalescent Centers, Inc. - In 1997, NHI funded a mortgage loan for Autumn Hills Convalescent Centers, Inc.
(“Autumn Hills”) in the original principal amount of $51,500,000. Collateral for the loan includes first mortgages on thirteen long-term
health care facilities in Texas, and certain corporate and personal guarantees. Principal and interest payments between April 2000 and
May 2001 were only fitfully made and the debtor filed for bankruptcy on May 15, 2001. No payments were made thereafter. Based on
these events and SFAS 114 analyses, NHI recorded impairments of $10,000,000 and $7,900,000 during 2001 and 2000, respectively, to
reduce the loan to our estimate of net realizable value. The debtor’s plan of reorganization, which was confirmed on January 28, 2002,
requires the debtor to reaffirm the original debt and capitalized interest and commence monthly payments on April 10, 2002. NHI’s net
receivable balance at December 31, 2001, after the above writedowns, is $31,197,000, which amount management believes is realizable.

Two New Jersey Centers- NHI has loaned approximately $18,373,000 to the owners of two New Jersey facilities opened in early 2000.
Each facility has 120 skilled nursing beds and 30 assisted living units. Neither facility has received a license to operate the assisted liv-
ing units nor their full complement of beds. The facilities are operating at a negative net operating income and have recently changed
their management company. These facilities have not made loan payments since July 2001. NHI has the limited personal guarantees of
the owners. Based on these events and SFAS 114 analyses, NHI recorded impairments of $5,304,000 during 2001. During the third quar-
ter of 2001, NHI filed a foreclosure lawsuit against the borrower and separate action against the individual guarantors. After the above
writedowns, management believes the collateral supports the carrying amount of $13,069,000 of this loan at December 31, 2001.

Manor House of Charlotte - An approximated $7,200,000 first mortgage loan to Manor House, Inc. went into payment default in
November 2001. The property is a newly constructed 110 unit assisted living facility in Charlotte, North Carolina. The owner and cor-
porate guarantor has offered to surrender possession to NHI if NHI will waive the corporate guarantee. While NHI has not accepted
this offer, management’s analysis of the future expected cash flows consistent with SFAS 114, historical occupancy of the project and
competition in the market area resulted in the recordation of a $3,800,000 writedown of this mortgage loan value in the fourth quarter
of 2001. Management believes that the remaining carrying amount of $3,400,000, after the above writedown, is supported by the value
of the collateral.

Note 5. Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments

To meet the reporting requirements of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 107, “Disclosures About the Fair Value of
Financial Instruments”, NHI calculates the fair values of financial instruments using quoted market prices and discounted cash flow
techniques. At December 31, 2001 and 2000, with the exception of the financial instruments listed below, there were no material dif-
ferences between the carrying amounts and fair values of NHI's financial instruments.

(in thousands)

December 31, 2001 2000
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amoumnt Value Amount Value
Marketable securities $ 27,273 $ 25,333 $ 39,110 $ 29440
Convertible subordinated debentures (62,643) (35,373) (114,281) (47,865)
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In September 1998, NHI purchased two million shares of the cumulative preferred stock of another REIT. The nonvoting preferred
stock is convertible into common stock at a 1:1 ratio. The preferred stock has an annual cumulative coupon rate of 8.5% payable quar-
terly and a liquidation preference of $19.25 per share. The preferred stock is not redeemable by NHI or the issuer. The preferred stock,
which is not listed on a stock exchange, is considered a nonmarketable security and is recorded at cost in the consolidated balance
sheets. Amounts received from the 8.5% coupon rate are recorded as income when earned.

Note 7. Investment in Marketable Securities

NHI’s investments in marketable securities include available for sale securities and held to maturity securities. Unrealized gains and
losses on available for sale securities are recorded in stockholders’ equity in accordance with SFAS 115. Realized gains and losses from
securities sales are determined on the specific identification of the securities.

Marketable securities consist of the following:

(in thousands)

December 31, 2001 2000
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
Cost Value Cost Value
Available for sale $ 15965 $ 9,463 $ 30,720 $ 16,343
Held to maturity 17,819 15,870 22,767 13,097
$ 33,775 $ 25333 $ 53,487 $ 29,440

NHI's available for sale marketable securities consist of the common stock of other publicly traded REITs. None of these available
for sale marketable securities have stated maturity dates. NHI’s held to maturity marketable securities consist of convertible corporate
bonds, all of which mature in the next two years.

Proceeds from the sale of investments in available for sale securities during the year ended December 31, 2001 were $12,833,000.
Gross investment losses of $1,922,000 were realized on these sales during the year ended Pecember 31, 2001.

Proceeds from the sale of investments in available for sale securities during the year ended December 31, 2000 were $12,314,000.
Gross investment gains of $689,000 and gross investment losses of $1,489,000 were realized on these sales during the year ended
December 31, 2000.

Held to maturity securities of $1,405,000 matured in 2001.

Assisted Living Concepts, Inc. Convertible Debentures - During 1999 and 2001, NHI purchased approximately $29,707,000 face
amount of certain convertible debentures issued by Assisted Living Concepts, Inc. (“ALC”) at a discount of approximately $13,771,000.
As a result of ALC declaring bankruptcy on October 1, 2001, NH]I, in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 115, recognized a per-
manent decline in value of its investment of $5,709,000.

Note 8. Investments in Real Estate Mortgage Investment Conduits

On December 29, 1995, NHI purchased for $6,158,000 a participating interest in a real estate mortgage investment conduit
(“REMIC”) in the form of one class of certificates issued in the aggregate principal amount of $146,104,000 (the “1995 REMIC™). Cn
November 9, 1993, NHI purchased for $34,196,000 a participating interest in a REMIC in the form of nine classes of certificates issued
in the aggregate principal amount of $172,928,000 (the “1993 REMIC”). Both of the REMICs represent the entire beneficial owner-
ship interest in a trust fund. Each trust fund consists of pools of mortgage loans, each secured by a first lien on a property that is used
in providing long-term nursing care and certain other assets.

Pursuant to SFAS 115, NHI has classified its investments in the certificates as held to maturity debt securities. Accordingly, the
investments in the certificates have been recorded at the amortized cost in NHI's consolidated financial statements. The effective yields,
as calculated, have been used to accrue income based on actual and projected future cash flows that reflect actual and assumed mort-
gage prepayments and interest rates. The average remaining lives of the mortgages in the 1995 REMIC and the 1993 REMIC are cal-
culated to be 3.9 years and 1.8 years, respectively.

During 2000, NHI was informed by the servicer of the 1993 REMIC that Mariner Health Care {one of the borrowers within the 1993
REMIC) was not making the required debt service payments. As a result, NHI wrote off $2,246,000 of the 1993 REMIC value. In addi-
tion, during 2001 and 2000, NHI received $2,706,000 and $1,850,000, respectively, of interest payments from the servicer of the 1993
and 1995 REMICs that has not been recorded as interest income because of a potential repayment obligation to the servicer of the 1993
and 1995 REMICs. NHI continually monitors the carrying amounts of the 1993 and 1995 REMIC investments based on actual cash
payments received and revised cash flow projections that reflect updated assumptions about collectibility, interest rates and prepayment
rates. In the opinion of management, no other impairments of the carrying amounts have occurred as of December 31, 2001.
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Note 9. Long-term Debt and Credit Facilities

Long-term debt and credit facilities, including refinancing commitments, consist of the following:

Weighted Average Final Principal Amount

December 31, Interest Rate Maturities 2001 2000
Senior secured bank credit facility, Variable,

repaid in 2001 8.6% —_— $ — $ 83,000,000
Senior notes, principal and Variable,

interest payable quarterly 32% 2007 17,387,000 19,057,000
Senior secured notes, principal and

interest payable semiannually 8.4% 2005 7,251,00 8,211,000
Senior secured notes, principal and

interest payable semiannually 8.3% 2003 249,000 414,000
First mortgage notes, principal and interest Variable,

payable monthly 5.4% 2006 9,453,000 —
Nonrecourse bank note, interest payable

monthly, principal due at maturity 6.0% 2007 25,637,000 —
Unsecured notes, interest payable semi-

annually, principal due at maturity 7.3% 2007 100,000,000 100,000,000
Unsecured note payable to NHC, interest

payable monthly, principal due at maturity 8.4% 2005 1,899,000 1,773,000
First mortgage notes, principal payable in

periodic installments, interest payable monthly 5.0% 2017 792,000 668,000
First mortgage revenue bonds, principal

payable in periodic installments, interest Variable,

payable monthly 5.9% 2002-2014 1,796,000 13,537,000

$ 164,464,000 $ 226,660,000

NHI also had certain letters of credit of $10,835,000 that matured during 2001. As a result, NHI purchased at face value all of the
outstanding first mortgage tax exempt bonds that were secured by the letters of credit. In regard to its investment in and liability under
these first mortgage bonds, NHI has a legal right of offset. Therefore, the first mortgage bonds purchased offset NHI’s debt obligations
in the consolidated balance sheet and in the table above.

The 7.3% unsecured notes (the “Notes™), have no sinking fund provisions. The Notes are senior unsecured obligations of NHI and
rank equally with NHI’s other unsecured senior debt. NHI agrees in the note indenture that it will limit liens on assets to certain per-
centages of tangible assets and that it will limit the issuance of new debt to certain multiples of capital or net worth.

At December 31, 2001, NHI is not subject to cross-default provisions with other debt of NHC, National Health Realty, Inc. (“NHR”)
and National Health Corporation.

The aggregate principal maturities of all long-term debt and credit facilities (excluding convertible debentures), for the five years
subsequent to December 31, 2001 are as follows:

2002 $ 4,359,000
2003 4,463,000
2004 4,582,000
2005 6,628,000
2006 6,657,000

National Health Investors, Inc. Page 47




4 VWA A We NAVLLUYVGL LLULG WU QRLLLGIRRL DAV LLLLL L Nnd

2000 Senior Debentures - Through a rights offering to its common stockholders on December 29, 2000, NHI issued $20,000,000 of
senior subordinated convertible debentures (the “2000 senior debentures”) due on January 1, 2006.

The 2000 senior debentures pay interest at the greater of the prime rate plus 1% or 9%. The interest rate is adjusted quarterly on January
1, April 1, July 1 and October 1 of each year. Interest is payable quarterly in arrears on April 15, July 15, October 15 and January 15.

Effective July 31, 2001, the debentures are convertible at the option of the holder into common stock of NHI at a conversion price
of $7.00 per share, subject to adjustment. By December 31, 2001, $13,848,000 of these debentures had converted into common stock
leaving $6,152,000 of the 2000 senior debentures outstanding. NHI has reserved an additional 878,857 shares of common stock for
future 2000 senior debenture conversions.

The 2000 senior debentures are redeemable at the option of NHI at any time after January 1, 2002. The 2000 senior debentures are
subordinated in right of payment to the prior payment in full of all senior indebtedness of the Company.

1997 Debentures - On January 29, 1997, NHI issued $60,000,000 of 7% convertible subordinated debentures (the “1997 deben-
tures”) due on February 1, 2004. At December 31, 2001, 1997 debentures in the amount of $56,286,000 were outstanding.

The 1997 debentures are convertible at the option of the holder into common stock of NHI at a conversion price of $37.50, subject
to adjustment. During 2001 and 2000, none of the 1997 debentures were converted. NHI has reserved an additional 1,500,960 shares
of common stock for future 1997 debenture conversions.

The 1997 debentures will not be redeemable prior to February 8, 2002 except in the event of certain tax-related events or to the extent
necessary to preserve and protect NHI's status as a REIT. The debentures are subordinated in right of payment to the prior payment in
full of all senior indebtedness of the Company. Interest is payable semiannually on February 1 and August 1 of each year.

1995 Debentures - On December 12, 1995, NHI sold $45,000,000 of a total of $100,000,000 of 7.75% convertible subordinated
debentures (the “1995 debentures”) due on January 1, 2001. The remaining $55,000,000 were sold on January 15, 1996. At December
31, 2000, 1995 debentures in the amount of $37,790,000 were outstanding and were subsequently retired on January 2, 2001.

199] Senior Debentures - On October 17, 1991, NHI issued $110,000,000 of 10% senior convertible subordinated debentures (the
“1991 senior debentures”) due 2006. At December 31, 2001, 1991 senior debentures in the amount of $205,000 were outstanding.

The 1991 senior debentures are convertible at the option of the holder into NHF's common stock at a price of $20.00 per share, sub-
ject to adjustment. In 2001 and 2000, none of the 1991 senior debentures were converted. NHI has reserved an additional 10,250 shares
of common stock for future 1991 senior debenture conversions.

The 1991 senior debentures rank equally with other unsecured debt of NHI (other than the trade debt) but are subordinated to all
existing and secured indebtedness. NHI may not incur or guarantee unsecured indebtedness which is senior in right of payment to the
1991 senior debentures. Interest at 10% is payable semiannually on January 1 and July 1 of each year.

Note 11. Commitments

At December 31, 2001, NHI was committed, subject to due diligence and financial performance goals, to fund approximately
$1,532,000 in health care real estate projects, of which $1,317,000 is expected to be funded within the next 12 months. The commit-
ments include mortgage loans for one long-term health care center, one hospital, and one assisted living facility, all at rates ranging from
10.0% to 11.5%.

NHI also has guaranteed bank loans in the amount of $1,184,000 to key employees and directors utilized for the exercise of stock
options. The guaranteed loans, which are limited to $100,000 per individual per year, are with full recourse and are collateralized by
marketable securities equal to at least 125% of the loan amount outstanding. The individual borrowers also personally guarantee the
loans. NHI’s potential accounting loss related to these guaranteed bank loans, if all collateral failed, is the face amount of the guaran-
teed loans outstanding.

NHI is aware of certain income tax contingencies with regard to its use of an independent contractor to manage certain of its fore-
closure properties. In order to fully resolve the contingencies, NHI is in the process of requesting from the Internal Revenue Service
(“IRS”) a closing agreement regarding the contingencies. It is possible that the IRS will not rule in favor of NHI. Such an unfavorable
ruling could result in the assessment of taxes, penalties and interest by the IRS that are material to NHI’s consolidated financial state-
ments taken as a whole and could also result in the loss of NHI’s status as a REIT, which would have a significant adverse impact on
the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of NHI.
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Note 12, Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock

8.5% Preferred Stock - In February and March 1994, NHI issued $109,558.000 of 8.5% cumulative convertible preferred stock
(“8.5% Preferred Stock™) with a liquidation preference of $25.00 per share. Dividends at an annual rate of $2.125 are cumulative from
the date of issuance and are paid quarterly.

The 8.5% Preferred Stock is convertible into NHI common stock at the option of the holder at any time at a conversion price of
$27.625 per share of common stock, which is equivalent to a conversion rate of 0.905 per share of common stock for each share of
8.5% Preferred Stock, subject to adjustment in certain circumstances.

The 8.5% Preferred Stock is not redeemable for cash, but effective February 15, 1999, the 8.5% Preferred Stock is redeemable by
NHI for common stock. NHI may redeem the 8.5% Preferred Stock only if the trading price of the common stock on the New York
Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) exceeds $27.625 per share for 20 trading days within a period of 30 trading days prior to the exercise.

At December 31, 2001, 747,994 shares of the 8.5% Preferred Stock, which are convertible into 676,934 shares of common stock,
are outstanding. During 2001 no shares were converted. During 2000, 700 shares of 8.5% Preferred Stock were converted into 633
shares of common stock. NHI has reserved 676,934 shares of common stock for future 8.5% Preferred Stock conversions.

2000 Preferred Stock - On March 31, 2000, NHI issued $3,000,000 of cumulative convertible preferred stock (the “2000 Preferred
Stock™) to NHC. The 2000 Preferred Stock, which was not listed on a stock exchange, was convertible into NHI common stock at the
lower of the then trading value of NHI common stock or $12.00 per share. The shares paid dividends at the rate of 8% through June
30, 2000 and at the rate of 10% from July 1, 2000 through September 30, 2000. Subsequent to September 30, 2000, the dividend rate
was 12%. This cumulative convertible preferred stock was redeemed in October 2001 and is no longer outstanding.

Note 13. Limits on Common Stock Ownership

The Company’s charter limits the percentage of ownership that any person may have in the outstanding securities of the Company
t0 9.9% of the total outstanding securities. This limit is a provision of the Company’s charter and is necessary in order to reduce the
possibility of the Company’s failing to meet the stock ownership requirements for qualification as a REIT under the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended.

Note 14. Stock Option Plan

NHI has stock option plans that provide for the granting of options to key employees and directors of NHI to purchase shares of
common stock at a price no less than the market value of the stock on the date the option is granted. The options may be exercised
immediately, but the Company may purchase the shares at the grant price if employment is terminated prior to six years from the date
of grant. The term of the options is five years. The following table summarizes option activity:

Weighted
Number Average
of Shares Exercise Price
Cutstanding December 31, 1998 221,134 $36.40
Options granted 190,000 16.81
Options expired 1,000 28.75
Gutstanding December 31, 1999 410,134 27.34
Options granted 45,000 10.13
Options expired and canceled 140,060 27.31
Outstanding December 31, 2000 315,074 24.90
Options granted 45,000 9.96
Options exercised and canceled 20,000 15.85
Outstanding December 31, 2001 340,074 $23.46

At December 31, 2001, all options outstanding are exercisable. Exercise prices on the exercisable options range from $9.96 to
$39.88. The weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at December 31, 2001 is 1.98 years. NHI’s Board of
Directors has authorized an additional 660,874 shares of common stock that may be issued under the stock option plans.

Based on the number of options outstanding and the historical and expected future trends of factors affecting valuation of those
options, management believes that the additional compensation cost, as calculated in accordance with SFAS 123, has no effect on NHI’s
earnings per share.
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Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information is as follows:

(in thousands, except share amounts)
Year Ended December 31 2001 2000 1999

Cash payments for interest expense $ 17,626 $ 23,357 $ 21,299
During 2001, 2000 and 1999, $13,848, $270 and $10, respectively,
of convertible subordinated debentures were converted into
1,978,238 shares, 8,537 shares and 316 shares, respectively,
of NHI’s common stock

Convertible subordinated debentures $ (13,848) $ (270) $ (8)
Financing costs 55 — —
Accrued interest (131) (10) (1)
Common stock 20 — —
Capital in excess of par value 13,904 280 9

During 2001, NHI acquired property in exchange for its rights under
mortgage notes and the assumption of debt

Mortgage notes receivable $ 19,052 5 — $ —
Debt 25,637 — —
Land (1,980) — —
Buildings and improvements (42,709) — —

During 2001, 2000 and 1999, NHI acquired property in exchange
for its rights under mortgage notes receivable

Mortgage notes receivable $ 19,691 $ 1,449 $ 67,650
Land (1,188) (234) (4,091)
Buildings and improvements (18,503) (1,215) (63,559)

During 2000 and 1999, NHI redeemed certain 1995 Debt Service
Debentures and applied those debentures against mortgage notes

receivable
Mortgage notes receivable $ — $ 1,190 $ 3,547
Convertible subordinated debentures — (1,190) (3,547)
During 2000, NHI sold property in exchange for a mortgage note
receivable
Mortgage notes receivable $ —_ $  (25,900) $ —
Land —_ 1,202 —
B Buildings and improvements —_ 24,698 —
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Note 16. Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year. Net income is
reduced by dividends to holders of cumulative convertible preferred stock.

Diluted earnings per share assumes, if dilutive, the conversion of convertible subordinated debentures, the conversion of cumulative
convertible preferred stock and the exercise of stock options using the treasury stock method. Net income is increased for interest
expense on the convertible subordinated debentures, if dilutive.

The following table summarizes the average number of common shares and the net income used in the calculation of basic and dilut-
ed earnings per share:

Year Ended December 31 2001 2000 1999
BASIC:

Weighted average common shares 24,466,850 24,383,932 24,365,027
Net income (loss) $ (63,000) $ 33,724,000 $ 53,618,000
Dividends paid to preferred stockholders (1,881,000) (1,814,000) (1,633,000)
Net income (loss) available to common stockholders $  (1,944,000) $ 31,910,000 $ 51,985,000
Net income (loss) per common share $ (.08) $ 1.31 $ 2.13
DILUTED:

Weighted average common shares 24,466,850 24,383,932 24,365,027
Stock options — 1,047 2,502
2000 Preferred Stock — 179,894 —
Average common shares outstanding 24,466,350 24,564,873 24,367,529
Net income (loss) $ (63,000) $ 33,724,000 $ 53,618,000
Dividends paid to preferred stockholders (1,881,000 ) (1,589,000) (1,633,000)

Net income (loss) assuming conversion of
convertible subordinated debentures

to common stock, if dilutive $  (1,944,000) $ 32,135,000 $ 51,985,000
Net income (loss) per common share $ (.08) $ 1.31 $ 2.13
Incremental shares excluded since anti-dilutive:
Convertible subordinated debentures 4,202,278 2,756,667 2,822,553
8.5% Preferred Stock 676,918 677,050 695,480
2000 Preferred Stock 202,055 — —
Stock options 340,074 315,074 410,134

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 128, “Earnings per Share”, the above incremental shares were
excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share, since inclusion of these incremental shares in the calculation would have
been anti-dilutive.
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Note 17, Common Stock Dividends

Dividend payments by NHI to its common stockholders are characterized in the following manner for tax purposes in 2001:

Taxable as Non-Taxable
Ordinary Taxable as Return of
Dividend Payment Date Income Capital Gains Capital Totals
January 28, 2002 $.45 $— $— $.45
$.45 $— $— -$.45

Naote 18. Relationship with National HealthCare Corporation

Leases - On October 17, 1991, concurrent with NHC’s conveyance of real property to NHI, NHI leased to NHC 40 long-term care
facilities and three retirement centers. Each lease was for an initial term expiring December 31, 2001, with two additional five-year
renewal terms at the option of NHC, assuming no defaults. During 2000, NHC exercised its option to extend the lease term for the first
five-year renewal term under the same terms and conditions as the initial term. NHI accounts for its leases as operating leases.

During the initial term and the first renewal term, NHC is obligated to pay annual base rent on all 43 facilities of $15,238,000. If
NHC exercises its option to extend the leases for a second renewal term, the base rent will be the then fair rental value as negotiated
by NHI and NHC.

The leases also obligate NHC to pay as debt service rent all payments of interest and principal due under each mortgage to which
the conveyance of the facilities was subject. Payments for debt still being serviced are required for the shorter of the remaining life of
the mortgage or lease term.

In addition to base rent and debt service rent, NHC must pay percentage rent to NHI equal to 3% of the increase in the gross rev-
enue of each facility. Effective January 1, 2000, NHI amended its lease agreements with NHC to provide for the calculation of per-
centage rent based on quarterly revenue increases rather than annual revenue increases. NHI recognized $2,899,000, $2,165,000, and
$1,191,000 of percentage rent from NHC during 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively.

Each lease with NHC is a “triple net lease” under which NHC is responsible for paying all taxes, utilities, insurance premium costs,
repairs and other charges relating to the ownership of the facilities. NHC is obligated at its expense to maintain adequate insurance on
the facilities’ assets.

NHC has a right-of-first refusal with NHI to purchase any of the initial properties transferred from NHC should NHI receive an offer
from an unrelated party during the term of the lease or up to 180 days after termination of the related lease.

Rental income was $46,020,000 ($32.,456,000 from NHC) in 2001, $47,525,000 ($32,069,000 from NHC) in 2000; and $45,993,000
(830,735,000 from NHC) in 1999.

During 2000, four of the leases - all in Florida - were terminated and NHI re-leased the properties to third parties. Although NHC’s rent
obligations pursuant to the master lease are unchanged, it receives a credit for rents paid to NHI on the four re-leased Florida centers.

At December 31, 2001, the future minimum lease payments to be received by NHI under its operating leases, including debt serv-
ice payments which are based on interest rates in effect at December 31, 2001, are as follows:

NHC Others Total
2002 $ 29,854,000 $ 18,219,000 $ 48,073,000
2003 29,793,000 17,823,000 47,616,000
2004 29,817,000 17,955,000 47,772,000
2005 30,744,000 18,092,000 48,836,000
2006 27,955,000 16,424,000 44,379,000
Thereafter — 80,245,000 80,245,000

Advisory Agreement - NHI has entered into an Advisory Agreement with NHC whereby services related to investment activities and
day-to-day management and operations are provided to NHI by NHC. As Advisor, NHC is subject to the supervision of and policies
established by NHI's Board of Directors.

The Advisory Agreement was initially for a stated term which expired December 31, 1997. The Agreement is now on a year to year
term, but terminable on 90 days notice, and the Company may terminate the Advisory Agreement for cause at any time. For its servic-
es under the Advisory Agreement, NHC is entitled to annual compensation in a base amount of $1,625,000, payable in monthly install-
ments of $135,417. The full fee, although earned, will be prorated to the extent that funds from operations (“FFQ™) is less than $2.00
per share. Under the Advisory Agreement, the Company reimburses NHC for certain out of pocket expenses including those incurred
in connection with borrowed money, taxes, fees to independent contractors, legal and accounting services and stockholder distributions
and communications. For 1993 and later years the annual compensation is calculated on a formula which is related to the increase in
FFO per common share (as defined in the Advisory Agreement).

For its services under the Advisory Agreement, NHC is entitled to annual compensation of $2,469,000 in 2001, $2,609,000 in 2000
and $2,779,000 in 1999. The annual compensation is reduced by any compensation paid by NHI to its executive officers, if any, and
may be deferred under certain circumstances.
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Corporate Offices

National Health Investors, Inc.
100 Vine Street, Suite 1402
Murfreesboro, Tennessee 37130
(615) 890-9100

Inquiries Regarding

Holdings and the

Stock Reinvestment Plan

For specific information related to
registered owners of NHI stock, such as
the NHI Dividend Reinvestment Plan,
change of address, transfer of ownership,
payment of dividends, replacement of
lost checks or stock certificates, please
write directly to our transfer agent:
SunTrust Bank, Stock Transfer
Department, P.O. Box 4625, Atlanta,
Georgia 30302 or telephone
1-800-568-3476.

Annual Stockholders’ Meeting

The Annual Stockholders meeting will be
at National Health Investors, Inc.
corporate offices on 100 Vine Street in
Murfreesboro, Tennessee at 4:30 p.m.
C.D.T. on April 16, 2002.
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Form 10-K

A copy of National Health Investors,
Inc.’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2001, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission is
available without charge by writing to
corporate offices at the address listed
above.

Quarterly Earnings Results and
Press Releases

In order to provide quarterly results and
other materials of interest to our
stockholders in a timely and cost-
effective manner, we have a web site:
www.nhinvestors.com. To have material
mailed to you, dial 1-800-844-4642.

Independent Public Accountants
Arthur Andersen LLP

424 Church Street

Nashville, Tennessee 37219
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